Public Document Pack

Notice of Meeting

Windsor Forum Af
Councillors Alison Carpenter (Chair), Amy Tisi (Vice-Chair), Neil Knowles, S
Wisdom Da Costa and Mark Wilson =
2
2| ‘anses
Thursday 9 November 2023 6.30 pm = | Royal Borough
Grey Room - York House - Windsor & on RBWM YouTube 2| of Windsor &
2 Maidenhead
Agenda
Item Description Page
Apologies for Absence
1 The Forum shall receive any apologies for absence. -
Declarations of Interest
2 The Forum are asked to declare any interests that they may have. 3-4

Minutes

record.

The Forum is to go through the action points in the minutes of the meeting 5-18
held on 19t September 2023 and approve them as a true and accurate

Busy Buttons CORE Charity

4 To receive a presentation about Busy Buttons CORE Charity from their 19-22
founders, Louella & Lautaro.
Parish and Town Councils - Powers and Responsibilities

5 To receive a presentation on the powers and responsibilities of parish and 23 -102
town councils from Stephen Hedges, Clerk to Cox Green Parish Council.
Town Manager Update

6 To receive an update from Paul Roach, Windsor and Eton Town Centre Verbal
Manager. Report

Vision for Windsor

Sustainability and Economic Growth, on the Vision for Windsor.

7 NOTE: This item follows up from Vision for Windsor being discussed in

previous Forum meetings:
e ‘Vision for Windsor’ — Meeting on 19t September 2023
e ‘The Windsor Vision’ — Meeting on 20t March 2023

To receive an update from Chris Joyce, Assistant Director of Infrastructure Verbal

Report

8 Resident Questions and Item Suggestions for Next Forum



https://www.youtube.com/user/WindsorMaidenhead
https://rbwm.moderngov.co.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=22246
https://rbwm.moderngov.co.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=22072

meetings and ask any questions that may have.

Residents are invited to make suggestions on agenda items for future forum

103 - 104

Date and Location of Next Meeting

on the following dates at 6.30pm:
e 11" January 2024
e 12" March 2024
e 8" May 2024

To note that all future meetings to be held in-person at York House, Windsor

By attending this meeting, participants are consenting to the audio & visual
recording being permitted and acknowledge that this shall remain
accessible in the public domain permanently.

Please contact Laurence Ellis, Laurence.Ellis@RBWM.gov.uk, with any
special requests that you may have when attending this meeting.

Published: Wednesday 1t November 2023




AgEenda ltem 2

MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS
Disclosure at Meetings

If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration
of interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (DPI) or Other Registerable Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest
in their Register of Interests they are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter
being discussed.

Any Member with concerns about the nature of their interest should consult the Monitoring Officer in
advance of the meeting.

Non-participation in case of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your DPIs (summary below, further
details set out in Table 1 of the Members’ Code of Conduct) you must disclose the interest, not
participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you
have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’ (as agreed in advance by the Monitoring
Officer), you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest.
Dispensation may be granted by the Monitoring Officer in limited circumstances, to enable you to
participate and vote on a matter in which you have a DPI.

Where you have a DPI on a matter to be considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet
Member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest
and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to
deal with it.

DPIs (relating to the Member or their partner) include:

o Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.

e Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) made to the
councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by him/her in carrying out his/her
duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election expenses

e Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has
not been fully discharged.

¢ Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the council.

Any licence to occupy land in the area of the council for a month or longer.

e Anytenancy where the landlord is the council, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant person
has a beneficial interest in the securities of.

e Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:

a) that body has a place of business or land in the area of the council, and

b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class
belonging to the relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that
class.

Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other Registerable Interests
(summary below and as set out in Table 2 of the Members Code of Conduct), you must disclose the
interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak
at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive
interest’ (as agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer), you do not have to disclose the nature of
the interest.

Revised September 2021 3



Other Registerable Interests (relating to the Member or their partner):
You have an interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to affect:

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are
nominated or appointed by your authority

b) any body
(i) exercising functions of a public nature
(if) directed to charitable purposes or

one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political
party or trade union)

Disclosure of Non- Registerable Interests

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being (and
is not a DPI) or a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the
interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak
at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must
not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’
(agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer) you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects —
a. your own financial interest or well-being;
b. afinancial interest or well-being of a friend, relative, close associate; or
c. abody included in those you need to disclose under DPIs as set out in Table 1 of the
Members’ code of Conduct

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after
disclosing your interest the following test should be applied.

Where a matter affects your financial interest or well-being:
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;
b. areasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would
affect your view of the wider public interest

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the
meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must
not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive
interest’ (agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer, you do not have to disclose the nature of the
interest.

Other declarations
Members may wish to declare at the beginning of the meeting any other information they feel should

be in the public domain in relation to an item on the agenda; such Member statements will be included
in the minutes for transparency.

Revised September 2021 4



Agenda Iltem 3

WINDSOR FORUM

Tuesday 19 September 2023

Present: Councillors Alison Carpenter (Chair), Amy Tisi (Vice-Chair), Devon Davies

and Mark Wilson

Also in attendance (virtually): Councillor Wisdom Da Costa

Officers: Laurence Ellis and Paul Roach

Officers (virtually): Shasta Parveen and Chris Joyce

Apoloqgies for Absence

The Chair, Councillor Carpenter, welcomed everyone to the meeting. Forum members then

introduced themselves.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Knowles. He was substituted by

Councillor D. Davies.

Declarations of Interest

No interests were declared.

Minutes

The Chair went through the actions from the last meeting:

ACTIONS FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS

UPDATE

Resident to email Andrew Durrant who
would then forward information on project
works around Goswell Hill.

A press release in relation explaining the
works in the area was published and had
been attached as a supplement with the
agenda.

Andrew Durrant to investigate opening the
coach park to improve access from
Footbridge to The Arches.

COMPLETE - The focus at the moment was
to deal with dilapidated state of the
Footbridge and lift. There were no further
plans at the moment. Some information
surrounding the works was provided in the
press release.

A motion to be forwarded at Full Council
to change the name of Windsor Town
Forum to ‘Windsor Forum’.

This was to be discussed and proposed at the

next Full Council meeting on Tuesday 16t
September 2023.

Invite a relevant officer or Councillor to
discuss the Council’s economic growth
plan to a future Forum meeting.

The Chair still wished to do this at a future
meeting.

Investigate whether there were grants
available for the Forum to use.

The Chair suggested that Councillor W. Da
Costa could look further into this.

Vision for Windsor to be added to the next

COMPLETE - Item added to the agenda.

5



meeting agenda.

Chris Wheeler to investigate with the | COMPLETE — Answer added to the Q/A
Highways Team and contractors on the | sheet attached to the agenda.
repair works on Victoria Street.

Outstanding actions:
¢ A motion to be forwarded at Full Council to change the name of Windsor Town
Forum to ‘Windsor Forum’.
¢ Invite a relevant officer or Councillor to discuss the Council’s economic growth
plan to a future Forum meeting.

Councillor W. Da Costa raised that he suggested an item where relevant officers present
RBWM'’s response to Heathrow Airport’s noise management plan consultation to the Forum.
Laurence Ellis, Democratic Services Officer, replied that RBWM had responded to the
consultation, but the response was not publicly available yet. Once made publicly available, he
suggested that this could be added to a Forum agenda in some shape or form.

AGREED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meetings held on 1gth July 2023 were
a true and accurate record.

Town Manager Update

Paul Roach, Windsor and Eton Town Centre Manager, gave the Town Manager Update.
Starting with the Footfall Count, he informed that the trend of the footfall decreasing at around
August of each year (as a result of the end of summer holidays and return to schools) had
remained unchanged in August 2023 and for the last four-to-five years. In spite of this,

Windsor had seen a 6.5% increase in footfall in the same period in 2022. Since 315t July

2023, Windsor Town Centre had over 655,000 visits, which was calculated from a footfall
counter on Prescott Street.

Paul Roach informed that the Windsor Town Management Team was looking into a new
scheme to monitor footfall across the whole of the Town Centre, which he hoped to present to
the Forum in the future once the data going into the scheme had been updated. This would
give a more accurate picture of movement around the Town Centre and shopping centres, in
contrast to the original practice of a single counter on Prescott Street.

Car and coach parking in July 2023 were fairly static compared to the same period in 2022.
Coach parking had seen a 23% increase compared to 2022 with much more tour groups
returning.

Town Centre vacancy rates had decreased by 9.4% (compared to 9.8% when last reported).
Windsor Town Centre did slightly better than the national average of 13.8%, though there
were still areas of concern.

The recently vacated units in the last three months were:

Reem Gallery — which had opened up but then closed within three weeks.
New Look.

Penriver Design Ltd.

Top Print.

Barclays Bank

HSBC

Paul Roach informed that there was a new scheme called Banking Hubs, whereby all the
banks came together and shared a space, usually through the post office service. There was
consideration on whether this scheme could be applied in Windsor as there was a strict

6




criterion, such as the number of cashpoints in the Town Centre. The Windsor Town
Management Team were planning to investigate this further, though Paul Roach speculated
that Windsor Town Centre may not fit the criteria due to not having the adequate number of
cashpoints. He suggested to possibly relay an update on this to the Forum in the future.

Despite the closures of Barclays and HSBC, Nationwide Building Society were not planning to
close their Windsor branch and instead they had made a national commitment to keep and
support their local branches.

(Chris Joyce, Assistant Director of Infrastructure Sustainability and Economic Growth, entered
the meeting virtually at 6:43pm)

Stores which had opened in the last three months were:
o Delicious Faux.

Banana Tree.

Badiani Gelato.

Time Watch Repair.

Greggs — doing well with two-floor store, potentially their second largest unit in “this

part of the world”, according to Paul Roach.

Rogue Tattoo.

Temptation Gifts.

Ti Chicken.

The Shambles.

YourHolidays.

There were new stores which were under development in the following vacant units:

e The Halifax unit would be rented out by another provider in the near future with an
agent from Halifax being interested in a unit.

¢ The New Look unit would be taken over by Mango, a fashion retail.

o The empty Top Shop unit had acquired some interest from providers.

e The Valarie's Patisserie unit was under redevelopment before being rented out to a
provider.

e The Pyms and Brothers unit had acquired some interest.

e The Corals unit had acquired some interest.

Overall, there had been some movement in a number of units with more interest coming in for
other vacant units in the next few months. It was expected that many of these would open
before the 2023 Christmas period. Paul Roach stated that while it was not 100% super
positive, Windsor Town Centre was doing better than most town centres.

Since the Covid pandemic, there had been a large number of new agencies which came on
board (in contrast to previously being one or two agents who solely dealt with retail units)
which sought to rent out vacant units in the Town Centre. From this, the Town Management
Team sought to contact all the agencies which managed the empty units. As it was uncertain
who managed some of the retail units, an objective over the next couple of months was to
identify the agents and the receive an update from them on the status of the unit, as well as
inform them of providers who may be interested in being tenants to the empty unit and the
types of offers wanted for the Town Centre.

Paul Roach also planned to create a Welcome Pack to provide information for new tenants
arriving to the Town Centre. This would primarily include information and who to contact in
regard to planning, licensing, permits and highways.

Sarah Walker, a resident, asked a couple of questions. Firstly, whether the footfall between
residents and tourists were distinguished. Secondly, clarification on how commercial retail
lettings and rates worked, as well as what impact the Borough could experience on reducing
rates and encouraging more and better occupancy in Windsor and how this process worked.

v



Replying to the first question, Paul Roach stated that residential and tourist footfall could not
be determined under the current measuring scheme. However, the new footfall measuring
scheme, called Visitor Insights, would be able to monitor movement in the Town Centre via
any devices with a GPS signal, such as mobile phones. It was also able to inform where the
particular device came from. The Town Management Team had signed up to a three-year
programme for Visitor Insights. They had been uploading the data in the last three months,
namely adding every property in Windsor, Eton and Ascot town centres, so the Team could
potentially identify people that enterted into different shops, how they moved around Windsor
and where they came from based on the GPS signal.

Responding to the second question, Paul Roach answered that the Council did not set the
rates but only collected them. It had limited powers around offering discounts, whereby the
Borough used to offer a retail hardship discount for potential retailers for a unit if it was empty
for more than 12 months as an incentive to rent it out. Paul Roach speculated that the
Borough continued to run this discount offer but added he would need to double check this.
He explained that the Town Management Team had an annual review with the Business
Rates Team discuss the available offers.

Paul Roach stated that the Town Management Team always advised businesses to review
their rates, particularly after the Covid pandemic, and many businesses discovered that they
fell out of the business rates scheme because they were too small. From this, the Town
Management Team encouraged businesses to receive professional advice and a valuation
review of their property unit; particularly as many more larger property units were being split
up into smaller units and therefore reducing the rateable value of the unit.

While stating that coach park usage increase by 23% year-on-year was positive, Jack Rankin,
a resident and the Conservative Party parliamentary candidate for Windsor, commented that
there was a perception in Windsor that there were inadequate dwell times for coach park
users. He asked what could be done to increase dwell time to ensure it benefited Windsor
more generally.

Paul Roach responded that the coach park usage was 1,400 users in August 2023, compared
to around 1,100 users in August-September 2022. He stated that there had been a number of
changes. For example, Windsor Castle opened only five days a week, being closed on
Tuesdays and Wednesdays, which had a significant impact on the Town Centre.

Paul Roach elaborated that Windsor Castle did a lot of work before the Covid pandemic
around improving the experience of visitors, with some feedback stating that visitors felt as if
they were being rushed and hassled, and that the Castle was not up to standard. As such, he
explained, the Covid pandemic provided an opportunity for Windsor Castle to reform
themselves; most notably a timed entry to avoid an over-capacity of visitors.

Regarding Windsor Coach Park, Paul Roach acknowledged that it required a refurbishment in
terms of where and how people enter Windsor and how they get from the Coach Park to um
the Town Centre. He stated that there had been some discussions to improve this, but there
was much work to be done. He also informed that there was some work taking place on a
tourism strategy for the next five years, which would highlight the various aspects of visitors
(both local residents and out-of-town tourists). He stated that improving the local economy
involved increasing the dwell time of visitors and thus encourage visitors to spend more time
and money. Therefore, this involved a lot of place management and consideration of how
Windsor looked and felt.

Anil Singh, a resident, expressed appreciation towards an organisation for providing a budget
for the flowers on Park Street. Moving onto his question, he explained that many visitors
parked their vehicles on Park Street due to its close proximately to the Town Centre. He
highlighted that there had been vans (in contrast to coaches) parking at Park Street in the last

8



few weeks. He asked if there was anything which could be done to improve this, stating that
residents may have to wait to park their cars.

Regarding the first point, Paul Roach informed that the flower baskets for Park Street were
provided by Windsor Town Partnership, an organisation which was funded by a number of
businesses and supported by the Council. He also informed that it was agreed at around the
end of July 2023 that there were some outstanding areas which required hanging baskets,
and that funding was acquired to reinstate hanging baskets, such as in Park Street, Prescott
Steet and Eton High Street.

Answering the second point, Paul Roach acknowledged the issue, stating that there had been
a slight increase in legal parking on Park Street since the Covid pandemic and the end of
lockdown as well as the works on Castle Hill. He stated that a number of parked vehicles were
private hire vehicles. While parking wardens patrolled areas, he conceded that the drivers
likely drove away when a warden was spotted and then returned once the warden was gone.

From Neil Waters, Parking Principal, Paul Roach explained that improvements were being
planned for Park Street, namely to increase and improve the signage as well as identifying
residential parking bays. On top of this, Paul Roach conveyed that he had done some
investigations around some of the vehicles which were parking on Park Street, stating that
some of the vehicles tended to be large, black Mercedes-Benz cars. He managed to identify
two private tour operators and then written to them about the issue of parking by their drivers.
Paul Roach stated that he would continue to communicate with the private tour operators on
the behaviour of their drivers in hopes of at least reducing the issue.

Councillor W. Da Costa asked a series of questions. He first asked whether there had been
any consultation or engagement with Windsor's local businesses on what kept their
businesses located in Windsor and how aspects in Windsor could be improved to increase
their successes. He also asked whether these sorts of questions were also forwarded to
agents, namely what they wanted when they moved into Windsor, and therefore make
improvements based on the feedback. He followed up by asking whether the data set
differentiated the different types of businesses operations (e.g., bars, clubs, restaurants, food
stores, and department stores). Councillor W. Da Costa then asked whether the footfall could
be differentiated between daytime, afternoon, evening and late night.

In terms of business survey work, Paul Roach replied that Windsor Yards shopping centre
used to do an annual operators survey which went to all the retail business units in the Town
Centre before 2019. It asked them how their stores were operated, confidence in the future
and barriers for customers visiting their store. Paul Roach mentioned that there had been
recent discussions in reintroducing this but more frequently (possibly every yearly quarter) to
get a sense or a trend from the various businesses in the area. This could be linked, he
suggested, with the survey from the Visitor Insights app (which would monitor footfall in and
out of the Town Centre); from there, advice could be given to retailers on where the main
footfall was.

Paul Roach then informed that the data sets included the different sectors, such as financial
institutions, retailers, independent retailers, health stores, non-food stores, restaurants, pubs
and clubs. From this, the Town Management Team was able to see roughly how many units in
the Town Centre covered each business sector (with some units covering more than one).
With the collected data, Paul Roach sought to provide the data on a more regular basis so that
people could see how the Town Centre moved in terms of its different sectors. There was a
large sector in terms of food and eateries as well as there being many non-food sectors.

Regarding the footfall, Paul Roach mentioned that he received reports which gave a timeline
of the footfall which recorded the footfall from 12:00am to 11:59pm, and thus he was able to
see the footfall during the daytime and night-time. The new system would show the same data
of footfall movement at certain times.



(Councillor W. Da Costa left the meeting virtually at 7:39pm)

While thankful for Paul Roach’s work, Duncan Reed, a resident, commented that there was
much emphasis on tourism in Windsor, opining that the development should be resident-
based. He then asked why there was much focus on tourists and not so much on residents.
Adding to the question, the Chair conveyed that she heard that many residents were visiting
other towns and asked how they could be kept in Windsor.

Paul Roach replied that he used the term “visitor” to refer to both residents and out-of-town
tourists. He then stated that the Covid pandemic and lockdown period highlighted that the
importance of the visitor sector of the Town Centre, particularly as they had an international
tourist window. He elaborated that it was important to maintain the visitor sector of Windsor
and Eton Town Centres as it helped the local economy as well as the fact that many
businesses moved into Windsor due to there being a mix of local, regional and international
visitors.

In spite of this, Paul Roach added that this did not mean that here should not be any focus on
residents. He believed that some issues which residents had raised around the Town Centre
were equally shared with out-of-town tourists with most complaints coming from out-of-town
tourists and some of them being similar to what residents had raised. From this, Paul Roach
believed that focusing on the tourist sector meant residents were losing out but rather improve
what Windsor had. He also informed that the tourism strategy would include investigating the
needs of local residents.

Vision for Windsor

Chris Joyce, Assistant Director of Infrastructure Sustainability and Economic Growth, gave a
presentation on the progress for the Vision for Windsor.

Starting off with some context, the Vision for Windsor was a development project managed
and undertaken by the Council-appointed Prince’s Foundation back in April 2022. From there,
a large number of engagement sessions with stakeholders, residents and community groups
took place between August and November 2022 which lead to a vision being developed. This
was then adopted by Cabinet in February 2023.

The feedback was collated together to develop a vision statement across a number of different
areas. The statements, Chris Joyce perceived, referenced discussions around a conflict
between the local community and global community, and thus raised questions on how to
balance the needs of residents with the desire and the demand which came from the
internationally recognised assets in Windsor, particularly Windsor Castle and Windsor Great
Park.

Coming out of the workshop sessions, five strategies were formulated alongside a set of
actions under each strategy (totalling to around 21 actions) to deliver the Vision. The five
strategies were:

Gateways and Arrival,

Town Centre Movement,

Character and Uses,

Public Realm,

Local Governance and Community Partnerships.

Work on the Vision had begun, though there had been a short pause due to the local elections

in May 2023 and the transition to the new administration. A workshop was held on 11th
September 2023 for RBWM officers as a starting point to develop a long list of potential
opportunities based on the work undertaken for the Vision. There were three key themes:

e What the Council was already doing in moving towards the Vision,

10



¢ Any potential quick wins based on the Borough’s knowledge of those areas, and the
work that's already in development.

e Identify some longer-term strategic plans which would take longer and therefore start
developing them.

On the back of the feedback from the engagement workshops, RBWM officers would work
with the new administration to establish their priorities based upon the Vision. There would be
a prioritisation process to develop a shorter list of potential projects, taking into account some
funding opportunities, particularly in the quick wins.

As part of the process for the Vision, RBWM officers sought to put key stakeholders,
communities and residents at the heart of the development of some of the key projects around
the objectives and scope, as much of the strength of the Vision came off the back of much
engagement from them.

Chris Joyce mentioned that there was an opportunity to utilise Windsor Town Forum to shape
some of these projects. He suggested to bring back the Vision for Windsor item at the next
Forum meeting in November 2023, bringing back details and some quick wins for further
discussion and to acquire input from residents and Forum members to help shape the work.

The projects which were in progress under each strategy included:
¢ Gateways and Arrival
o Refurbishment works at the coach park bridge and lift.
o Windsor to Staines Bus route, alongside an upcoming Cabinet paper for
supported bus services.
o Car parking ‘facelifts’ as part of the ‘Welcome to Windsor’ project.
e Town Centre Movement
o Recent improvements on Stovell Road and Barry Avenue.
o Improvements to wayfinding in Windsor.
o Investments into cycle parking
¢ Public Realm
o Works at Castle Hill Public Realm.
o Installation at Platinum Jubilee fountain.

o Local Governance and Community partnerships
o Directory of community partnerships in development.
o Working group being established to look at a register of landlords to improve the
knowledge and information on owned properties in Windsor and therefore
engage with people around how the town could develop.

After thanking Chris Joyce for the presentation, Duncan Reed, a resident, perceived that the
listed activities were only “small, minor projects fiddling on the edges” and that he did not see
a vision. He believed that Windsor needed great consideration on a major re-engineering of
the layout and how things worked. Chris Joyce responded that he agreed and that this was
the purpose of the Vision: setting out some bigger and bolder ideas which could be taken
forward. One of the key themes taken out of the recent workshops was quick wins in which the
Council was already doing: minor works which could be done quickly with small amounts of
funding.

As part of that work, there were also larger longer-term strategies, such as traffic flow and
managing car parking, and coach arrivals, which would be delivered over a longer period.
Chris Joyce suggested this could be brought back for further discussion to flesh them out. He
reassured that there were large and small projects, but added that it did not mean smaller,
short-term projects would not be worked on now while a longer-term plan was being
developed.

Duncan Reed responded that the little projects in the meantime should be building up towards
a larger objective.

11



Adding to Duncan Reed’s point, Sarah Walker conveyed that the purpose of the Windsor
Vision was for a vision for Windsor. She stated that in spite of there being many strategic
ideas, significant resident engagement and a vision being formulated, she perceived that the

workshop for RBWM officers on 11th September 2023 was “watering down” the work which
had been done. She reiterated Duncan Reed’s point that a proper formulated plan was
needed, coming out of the vision and strategy. Chris Joyce denied that the Vision for Windsor
was being watered down. He explained that the workshop was formulating more detailed
planning on the long-term strategies as developing them would take a lot of work, as well as
identifying the feasibility of some of the ideas. He added that the works would need to be
prioritised due to the limited amount of resources at the Borough. In the short-term, the
Borough sought to continue the drive improvements through the quick wins. Essentially, the
workshop was not about watering down, but rather prioritising the short-term works and
progressing the feasibility studies on the larger projects. It was more about how to turn the
idea into reality and how to develop a plan. Chris Joyce stated that clearer worked-out plans
could be presented at the next meeting in November 2023.

The Chair liked the idea of a list of quick wins for the next Forum meeting.

Nigel Griffin, a resident, asked who was responsible for setting the budget, where the finance
was coming from, and which elected Councillor was championing the project. Answering the

first questions, Chris Joyce replied that the workshop on 11th September 2023 included
discussions on identifying existing funding streams which could be directed to some of the
projects, such as central government through the UK Shared Prosperity Fund. Fundamentally,
the Borough’s budget was set at the Full Council meeting every February. As the projects
would require money and people’s time, the prioritisation work included working with the
administration to determine what money could be put into the budget as well as prioritise
where officer time should be spent.

The Chair then pointed out that Councillor A. Tisi was the Lead (Cabinet) Member for
Windsor. Councillor A. Tisi informed that she was involved in the Vision for Windsor project,
such as taking part in some of the stakeholder meetings, and then stated that it was important
the project did not get shelved and be forgotten. She stated she looked forward to working
with Andrew Durrant, Chris Joyce and the rest of the team to develop it. She added that she
started talking to local businesses in Windsor about their involvement with the project and that
they and the Borough could draw together the Windsor Town Partnership and Visit Windsor
strategy so that they could potentially help deliver the Windsor Vision project, as well as the
works relating to these could delivered collectively rather than separately.

Rewin, a resident, asked what sort of residents were involved in the engagement meetings in

relation to the project currently and in the future. Chris Joyce replied that the meeting on 11th
September 2023 was attended by Council officers and was to develop some of the project
ideas into greater detail. The Vision for Windsor was written with a lot of input from residents
and was to continue to have residents at the heart of it, whereby individual projects were
shaped in partnership with residents so that the objectives and scope were clear and being
achieved. This was part of the reason why the item was brought to the Forum and for the
suggestion of bringing the item back to the Forum.

The Chair pointed out that the documents for Vision for Windsor had listed the stakeholders
which were involved in the decision making.

Being the Councillor for Eton and Castle ward, Councillor Wilson commented that the Castle
part of the ward was a key part of the Windsor Vision, and that he and the other Councillors
from the ward (Councillors J. Tisi and D. Davies) had been heavily involved in speaking to
residents, businesses and RBWM officers on the issues to acquire and represent residents’
views. He stated that there was much discussion on some potential concepts and projects,
such as one-way systems and pedestrianisation. He stated that this was an exciting time in

12



which he was enthusiastic to be a part of and would continue to be a point of contact for
residents.

Anil Singh highlighted that Windsor lacked a cinema and a live music venue in spite of having
many other features, namely many restaurants and Windsor Castle, which made Windsor a
popular tourist destination. He asked whether the Vision could consider a cinema and a live
music venue or club (like a jazz club). Chris Joyce replied that while the Borough could not
force a jazz club to be opened, it nevertheless was engaging with agents and landlords to
diversify Windsor and attract businesses and services. Chris Joyce added that the Borough
sought to work with residents and visitors to bring forward facilities in which they would use in
the Town Centre. He stated that he would take this away.

Adding to Chris Joyce’s answer, Paul Roach stated that one of the upcoming developments
was the works around Windsor Yards, which was approved in May 2023, and that this would
include a three-screen boutique cinema.

ACTION: Vision for Windsor to return to the next Forum meeting in November
2023.

Digital Strateqgy in Windsor

Shasta Parveen, Service Lead for Infrastructure and Digital Strategy, gave a presentation on
the digital infrastructure in the Borough. She explained that the Borough was part of the Digital
Infrastructure Group (DIG), a pan-Berkshire organisation whereby the local authorities in
Berkshire (RBWM, Bracknell, Slough, Wokingham and West Berkshire) worked with the Local
Enterprise Partnership to deliver and achieve improved digital connectivity to achieve a
Connected Berkshire.

The reason that RBWM joined DIG were to:
¢ Improve digital connectivity across the borough and support the broader corporate plan
goals.
e Provide opportunity for residents and businesses and look at emerging digital
technology and then bring them to the Borough.
¢ Have a uniformed approach to make it easier for infrastructure companies to work with
the Borough.

The Borough recently had signed the Digital Adoption Strategy on 11th July 2023 which
outlined the goals that DIG sought to achieve, primarily to support economic development and
business engagement. Shasta Parveen suggested that she could return to the Forum and give
an update to the Digital Adoption Strategy.

The benefits of the Borough being part of DIG were:
e Achieve broader and faster broadband coverage, ensuring that it was available for
everybody.
e Ensuring mobile coverage and enabling 5G roll out.
e Enabling opportunities for emerging digital technology (e.g., internet of things, smart
cities).

In terms of what was happening, the Digital Infrastructure Team were:

o Engaging with multiple providers and facilitating the roll out of FTTP (fibre to the
premises) in the Borough, which would include an infrastructure roll out of cables.

o CityFibre had completed the roll out in Maidenhead and mobilisation would commence
in Windsor early-2024. Shasta Parveen offered to provide more details in terms of the
location of works when the information would become available.

e Rolled out FTTP to 26 schools within RBWM, allowing them the choice to connect, and
thus expanding more opportunities.

13



e Engaging with multiple mobile network providers on the roll out of 5G mobile
connectivity. Windsor would be one of the first areas in RBWM to have a small cell
deployed.

The three main providers were:
+ Gigaclear:
o 5,594 premises were ready for service within the Borough.
* Openreach:
o Delivery was completed, 4,600 premises ready for service borough-wide.
« CityFibre:
o Have 6,125 properties borough wide ‘ready for service’.
o 350 connected customers on the borough network at present).
o Run rate of around 20 connections/week.

They would ensure that the Borough would have live connections for local residents and
businesses and therefore possess fast broadband speeds.

Regarding the timeframe in Windsor:
* August 2023 - present
o Virgin Media/O2 were working to upgrade telecoms cabinets, with a planned 864
cabinet upgrades borough-wide.
+ Early-2024
o CityFibre to commence roll out of FTTP infrastructure in Windsor — detailed plans
were pending.

Jon Davey, a resident, briefly asked if high-speed broadband was 10-to-20 times faster than
normal broadband, to which Shasta Parveen confirmed. He then asked whether the new
technologies would decrease the likelihood of latencies (delays) in wireless connection, for
example, in the garden or certain parts of a house. Shasta Parveen replied that she could take
this question away and provide a more accurate answer; but she believed that the FTTP was
a stronger and faster signal.

Jon Davey then asked if the 5G small cell deployment would be applied at industrial sites and
the Town Centre or across the board. Shasta Parveen replied that it was across the board.
She added that the providers, working collaboratively with the Borough, were expressing their
interest in certain locations where they would ideally like to deploy a 5G cell. From there, a
process in which the Borough would assess whether the location was viable to deploy the cell,
ensuring that it would be deployed correctly and safely.

Anil Singh stated that when he approached provider companies (such as Vodafone) on getting
faster broadband connection on Park Street, he received unsatisfactory responses. He then
requested for Park Street to be included in the work. Shasta Parveen responded that she had
noted Park Street and would take the question away. She then stated that the providers were
encouraging; and that there was a process where residents could submit questions regarding
certain areas and postcodes, in which timely responses were sent.

Anil Singh added that a neighbour of his had followed the aforementioned process and had
reached a dead end. This then led to some consideration for residents of Park Street to
improve the connectivity privately, but it would cost thousands of pounds and therefore it was
not ideal. He hoped that this issue would be resolved. Shasta Parveen reiterated that she
would take this point away; adding that another Councillor had raised a point in relation to
connectivity on Prescott Street and thus would investigate Park Street alongside Prescott
Street.

The Chair highlighted that there had been connectivity issues in the Town Centre and
mentioned that she would contact Shasta Parveen regarding a local business not acquiring
internet. Shasta Parveen gave some feedback on Prescott Street, stating that it was being
investigated with some engineers being deployed. She added that some messages may have



been missed due to the holiday period. Nevertheless, she reiterated that she would investigate
this.

John Reed, a resident, stated that he worked with the local business referenced by the Chair
to get them access to the internet since December 2022 until August 2023. He stated that it
was impossible for the business to get internet access (near the B Road, off Dedworth Road)
apart from a 4G signal. He also briefly highlighted that there were other internet blind spots in
Windsor. Shasta Parveen stated that she would take this away.

John Reed then highlighted that the people in rented properties were forced to take out 12—
24-month leases with internet providers and often they were only on a six-or-12-month tenure,
and they may be required to have an 18-month service with their service provider. He asked
whether the Local Enterprise Partnership could do anything to encourage service providers to
offer shorter-term contracts which do not cost a fortune. Shasta Parveen said that she would
take this away and investigate.

John Reed commented that he believed that it would help people in rented properties
because they would not need to then be in long-term contracts with fixed service providers.

Chris Joyce raised that one objective in which DIG was working on was more affordable tariffs
that could come forward, particularly for residents on low incomes; adding that one of the
benefits of the Berkshire local authorities working together under DIG was that they had more
clout in those discussions with operators. He suggested that this was a point which could be
taken into discussions amongst the other local authorities under DIG, stating that it would be a
useful to have a collective engagement with the companies on how a product could be
developed which worked well for renters.

Elliot Howells, a resident, commented that there were two issues. Alongside the issue of
installing fast broadband in homes, he stated that there was a broader issue of signal
capacity, in contrast to signal speed and strength. He asked if there was any work being done
to address this. Elliot Howells then highlighted that signal blockers around Windsor Castle
(likely for security reasons) were often blamed by local businesses. Shasta Parveen replied
that she would take these points away.

Frankie Theobald, a resident, asked how DIG determined which areas should be prioritised for
the roll out of FTTP, or who determined the program. Shasta Parveen replied that the
decisions came from the providers rather than DIG. Nevertheless, the Borough would find out
when works were happening through DIG and step in when necessary and support the
facilitation process, such as setting community drop-in sessions for CityFibre. While she did
not have the information on which streets in Windsor were being rolled out and when, she
stated that once received, she could forward the information.

Councillor A. Tisi asked whether the roll out of FFTTP would predominantly be focused on the
Town Centre or would encompass the wider town of Windsor. She then stated that the area
between Eton and Eton Wick was a rural area which had poor internet connectivity, and asked
whether the roll out in this area could be chased up. Shasta Parveen replied that she would
take these points away. She confirmed that the roll out would encompass the wider Windsor
area and that she had a location map of where it covered. In regard to Eton, she stated that
there were pockets of poor internet connection which were being investigated and improve the
connectivity.

Gareth Jones, a resident, asked whether there would be any disruptions during the roll out of
FTTP, such as roadworks. Shasta Parveen replied that there would be some disruption.
However, this would be well communicated with the Digital Infrastructure Team working
closely with the providers to ensure that this would be minimised. She cited that CityFibre had
communicated well with residents and business when doing works in Maidenhead.

ACTION: Shasta Parveen to forward answers to the following queries on:

15



*  Whether the new technologies would decrease the likelihood of latencies
(delays) in wireless connection, for example, in the garden or certain parts of
a house.

* Investigate any works on improving broadband connectivity on Park Street
and Prescott Street as part of the Digital Adoption Strategy.

* Internet access for a local business near the B Road off Dedworth Road.

*  Whether the Local Enterprise Partnership could anything to encourage
service providers to offer shorter-term contracts in regard contracts in rental
properties which do not cost a fortune.

*  Whether there was any work being done to address the issue of internet
capacity and whether signal blockers around Windsor Castle played a role in
this.

*  Which streets in Windsor would be prioritised for the roll out of FTTP and
when this would happen.

*  What areas of Windsor would the roll out of FTTP be implemented, whether
the Town Centre or wider Windsor, and including the rural areas of Eton and
Eton Wick.

Resident Questions and Item Suggestions for Next Forum

The Chair asked for any questions or item suggestions.

Gareth Jones informed that he was a member of WAMCLT (Windsor, Ascot and Maidenhead
Community Land Trust), which sought to provide housing for the community, and that they
had an interest in the Borough Local Plan (BLP) sites. He asked if there were any updates on
the BLP sites AL21 and AL22 in west Windsor. As Chair of the Windsor Development
Management Committee, Councillor Tisi stated that the outline permission for the BLP near
Aldi in the west of Windsor was approved in early 2023, and the reserve matters (details of the
design of the plan) would be forwarded to the Panel shortly (likely in October 2023). The other
site had been built.

Rewin raised concerns regarding the speed (or lack of speed) of planning enforcement in
regard to the removal of the signage, fencing and enclosure of the pathway at Alma Road and
Vansittart Road. While appreciative of the support from local Councillors, she stated that
residents were nevertheless concerned of the lack of speed of enforcement and this being
regarded as of medium importance, and therefore little clout in regard to resolving the issue.
Rewin sought to re-emphasis the concerns of this issue and acquire more support that the
land was recognised as a green area since the mid-1980s (including the pathway). She
reiterated that Planning Enforcement was slow in resolving the issue, which started on 30th
May 2023 according to Rewin, and was a cause of concern for nearby residents. According to
Rewin, yesterday afternoon, the private owners of the land had moved the fencing due to the
nearby highways works. She stated that this allowed residents to use the walkway more
efficiently. But when it was fenced off again, she described the pathway as “look[ing] ghastly”
and not being maintained in anyway.

The Chair stated that she was aware of the issue. Councillor Wilson responded that he shared
the concerns about the aforementioned piece of land, mentioning that he regularly cycled
down the pathway, and understood the frustration with the pace of planning enforcement. He
stated that he was ensuring that Planning Enforcement Officers were aware of this as well as
understand their process. He stated that there was a challenge in communicating with the
landowners, and that, as far as he was aware, planning enforcement had not contacted the
owners, adding that this was a problem. He nevertheless perceived this as a very high-risk
site. He informed that he was planning to catch-up with the Planning Enforcement Officer
within the week and receive an update from them. He perceived that the actions within the
Planning Department moved quite slowly, to which he apologised for, as well as contacted the
local PCSO (Police Community Support Officer) in anticipation of some additional work taking
place and an opposing demonstration taking place. Overall, he considered this issue as very
serious, particularly as it was a green space.
16



While appreciative of the support from local Councillors, Rewin then raised that there was
much concern about a third planning application (since 2010) around the old Imperial House
site.

Jon Davey asked about the name change of the Forum. The Chair replied that there was a
suggestion from residents in the Forum meeting in May 2023 to change the Forum meeting
from ‘Windsor Town Forum’ to ‘Windsor Forum’ on the grounds that the Forum covered the
whole of Windsor. When Jon Davey queried on the areas the Forum encompassed, the Chair
informed that it covered the unparished wards of Windsor: Clewer and Dedworth East, Clewer
and Dedworth West, Clewer East, Eton and Castle, and Old Windsor.

Rewin commented that the discussion around the name change was to be make the Forum
more inclusive of all areas of Windsor.

The Chair reiterated the request for tree management and Vision for Windsor on the next
meeting agenda. Councillor A. Tisi suggested an item from Visit Windsor.

Anil Singh requested that, as part of the Vision for Windsor update, the quick wins would be
included and potentially circulated before the next meeting. He stated that he had seen two

dates for the next meeting: one time stating 9t November 2023 and another time mentioning

8t November 2023. He therefore asked for clarification on which was the correct date. When
the Chair directed the question to Laurence Ellis, he replied that the recent rearrangement of
Cabinet and Full Council meetings had meant that the dates of other meetings had to be

moved, including Windsor Town Forum. Therefore, the confirmed date was Thursday gth
November 2023.

Nigel Griffin asked if any lessons had been learnt around consultation, stating that work on the
refurbishment of the Footbridge had stalled and a response was received after a minor
demonstration and some press coverage. Councillor D. Davies replied that the lessons learnt
included ensuring businesses knew what was going on and that communication needed to be
improved. He informed that this would hopefully be improved with a new CRM (Customer
Relationship Management) system which was going to be installed.

When asked by the Chair about delays surrounding the work on the Footbridge, Chris Joyce
stated that as a result of feedback from businesses, the programme was altered whereby
works on the lift and the bridge were split rather than both worked being simultaneously. The
works on the lift would take place first, which would enable the bridge to remain open during
the Christmas period. The works on the footbridge would take place after Christmas period
whereby the footfall would be low.

Chris Joyce then stated that a lot of the issues surrounding the works on the Footbridge were
based on the Borough having an agreement with Network Rail, for which they insisted that
they pick up the discussions with businesses and The Arch Company as part of that
engagement. He stated that this was not picked up as well as it was hoped. From this, he
stated that the lesson learnt from the Borough'’s perspective was that it was important for it to
be close to local businesses and ensuring that they were receiving the information they
needed. Overall, Chris Joyce stated that the Borough listened to the feedback, and as such
changed the work programme, and therefore the impact on businesses as a result of the
works would be improved.

Councillor A. Tisi expressed appreciation to Chris Joyce and the rest of the Infrastructure
Team for their work in relation to the Footbridge.

The items suggested for future Forum meetings:
o Tree management
o Vision for Windsor

17



e Visit Windsor

Date and Location of Next Meeting

The Forum noted that the next meeting would be held on 9" November 2023 at 6:30pm at
York House, Windsor. The subsequent meeting dates (all 6:30pm) were:

e 11" January 2024
e 12" March 2024
o 8" May 2024

The meeting, which began at 6.31 pm, finished at 8.20 pm

18



19

Agenda ltem 4



20



21



22



Parish & Town Councils

Windsor Forum



This is NOT a Parish Council




What are Parish Councils

* Civil local authorities
* A tier of local government that is closest to communities
* Created by the Local Government Act 1894

»* They vary enormously in size with some representing
populations of less than 100 to others over 130,000

* Individual budgets ranging from less than £1,000 to over
£4 million

* They cover both rural and urban areas

* Generically referred to as “local councils”, there are over
10,000 in England

* There is not a ‘one-size fits all’ definition




Naming Style
As well as Parish Council, a local council can resolve to call itself any of the
following:
Town Council
Village Council
Community Council

9¢

Neighbourhood Council

However, their powers and duties are the same whatever name they
choose — the same legislation applies to all.

Note: The Chairman of a Town Council may style themselves as Town Mayor



Ll

Local Authority ‘Tiers’

County Councils

These are responsible for services across the whole of a county, like:
* education
e transport
¢ planning
e fire and public safety
e social care

Unitary * libraries

* waste management

Authority * trading standards

(RBWM) District, Borough and City Councils

These cover a smaller area than county councils. They’re usually responsible for
services like:

e rubbish collection

e recycling

¢ council tax collections

* housing

e planning applications

Parish and Town Councils

They're elected and can help on a number of local issues, like providing:
¢ allotments
* public clocks
¢ bus shelters
* community centres
* play areas and play equipment
grants to help local organisations
¢ consultation on neighbourhood planning

They also have the power to issue fixed penalty fines for things like:
o litter
* graffiti
* fly posting
* dog offences




Powers & Duties

Local Councils have various powers and duties conveyed by
many Acts of Parliament. This means they may only do what
the law says they “may” do (powers) and they must do what
the law says they “must” or “shall” do (duties).

nyMany duties are in relation to operational and/or legislative compliance, i.e.
appointment of relevant officers, signing of acceptance of office, financial
reporting, declaration of interests, holding of an annual meeting. There is also a
duty to provide allotments if demand exists.

Effectively powers provide the legislative authorisation for both the ability to do

something along with its related expenditure. A local council may only incur
expenditure from the public purse if it has a lawful basis to do so (i.e. a relevant

power).



6¢

Recreation ceneral powers Land H lghways
i A
Parish documents //otments By@\laws

: Fi :
Clocks Pubjj~ . Mancig/ Hecicn COSS g
Nnce

tammeﬂ’t ) Community centres
gntet Mortuaries and post mortem rooms
Town and country planning o5 fac\\‘\’t'\es

ion NnC
: ceventio aces nfere
crme P open ?p f;goﬁ Water ;upply
Bus shelters \Litter 1ra cifts Drainage



Parish & Town Council
Facilities




1€

Parish/Town Council Funding

The main source of funding is the precept levy which is part of the
Council Tax bill

Other sources of funding may also include:-

* Service charges * Allotment rents
* Hall/room hires * Lease income
* Market fees * Pitch/Grounds fees
* Car parking charges * Interest & Investments
* Grants * CIL/Section 106

In addition, capital expenditure may also be funded via loans from the
Public Works Loan Board as well as reserves built up for that purpose.



A

Berkshire Parishes

Berkshire currently has 104 civil parishes across the six Unitary
Authority areas.

* Wokingham, West Berkshire & Bracknell Forest are fully parished
* Reading has no parishes

* Slough has 3 parishes on the periphery with the vast majority of the
authority’s area unparished.

* RBWM has 15 parishes (13 parish councils, 1 town council and a

parish meeting) — the two main urban areas of Maidenhead and
Windsor are unparished.



. WINDSOR

2 1own Council

?




Town Council Area

* Population of approx. 34,000
* Area covering 7.2 sq.miles

* 20,500 electors

* Two third’s Green Belt

* River Thames

**Historic Royal Town

* Shopping Centre

* Popular tourist destination
* Royal residence

Windsor Town Council would
be a large local council




Larger Council Comparison

Compared with other local councils, Windsor Town Council would be within the:
* Largest 40 within England (35" of 10,400)
« Largest 20 within Unitary Authority Areas (18" of 4,300)
» Largest 5 within Berkshire (3™ of 105)

Using the tax base forcomparison

Ge

Comparative Precept Data

England Unitary Area Berkshire

Largest 40 Largest 20 Largest 5
Average Band D = £ 80.54 Average Band D = £ 110.31 Average Band D = £ 90.13
Average Precept=£ 1.4m Average Precept=£ 1.9m Average Precept=£ 1.3m




9¢

Comparison within Berkshire

As local councils vary so considerably in service delivery, demographics, geographical

size, etc. it is difficult to provide direct comparisons.

Tax base provides the most

useful metric as it is a measurable statistic used by the Office for National Statistics.

Therefore, in Berkshire, the closest comparison to Windsor is Newbury. The Town
Council’s tax base and population is about the same, it is a historic market town and
operates many similar services/facilities.

#a NEWBURY

g- Town Council

Services and facilities include:

* Allotments .
* Sports Pitches .
* Cemeteries
* Markets

* Newburyin bloom -«

Playgrounds
Open spaces
Public toilets
Venue hire
Benches

* Litter bins

* Bus shelters

* Footwaylights

* Community
Partnerships

2023/24 Budget & Precept
Total Expenditure: £2,280,724
Precept: £1,575,224
Band D: £94.66




LE

Existing Arrangements - Special Expenses
‘Concurrent Functions’

Within an authority’s administrative boundary, if a principle council is
providing services to a specific area that elsewhere are provided by a parish
or town council (known as concurrent functions), the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 permits the principle council to charge that area separately
for those services. This is classed as special expenses.

The purpose of this legislation is to enable the cost of concurrent functions
to be applied to where they are provided — i.e. only the area’s council
taxpayers that receive those services pay for them.

RBWM applies this in a limited way, to the unparished areas of Maidenhead
and Windsor and it is accounted for as ‘Special Area Expenses’ (SAE).



8¢

The powers available to local councils mean that any of the list below, currently
provided by the Borough Council, could be undertaken by Windsor Town Council.

Car parks Gritbins
Sports Pitches Public toilets
Cemeteries Venuesfor hire
Markets Benches
Allotments Litter bins
Playgrounds Bus shelters
Museum Footway lights
Open spaces Tourist facilities

Allthe above is subject to resourcing including finance, staffing and relevant transfers.

In addition, some ‘Principle Council’ functions/services can be delegated to, or provided
by, a Parish/Town Council on behalf of the Borough Council if an agreement to do so is put
in place. (Delegated Functions are separate to ‘parish’ powers.)



a5
- 5 ‘el TROsANOI (030)
Y < P » . ViaduGl: ' Mastt
* % FB Wers
N Black Potts Ait

" Royal Windsoe
Raoe Cuurw 'y

Rocroatin
3 | Geound '
Cuckoo Weir |sland

The Brocas

5 5 d &
* _ South Meadow A5 / : < *
- NOn . Sta A\
Sndge > ) Vi
\ ,, 4.'_\’;&,‘0? Path o Ry 953\
{Rient: - North Slopes
P ARE e oA Stepparg
Sl i Windsor Stones
T 7 s Castle Sy 008
Goswels ‘rJ{ 1L = Y4 - e
) \ Middle Ward ol T Caven, " DWeRRg_ Ty
,Uppt"' wiird c;';’:rmce ' % o ”Ms
South Siopes Rockery
= ' £ iy
e N
-. -~ V"v
Golf Course .
x‘CNnbnogo Gate
/
Cricket -
) Ground |
;.‘I - Iy A e . g o : ® ! N DA e e W
& b OW ' kg : Ty NS o ) ] Long Walk Gate Car Park ™ The Home Pa
-y ~ 9&« o 4 < > I' ¥ (> 2r s _
in o BN ¢ J g > FB
. .3 T
P A D By
Shace 0 5 5
. A Ea R

P Margarot i‘?‘.’v’,n‘, I ‘
NO!pcl.:l e

v

Allotment sites

-

.

% 4 I\ B2 /1 ﬁ‘,‘

o X ’Clewer Gree

Hha %] Recreation Grounds, Open
RS 33:::.5.::;: ' Spaces & Play Areas

WX AT 7 2N <

; b
7, [] Town Council boundary

2
i .«.;,:,\.».....

Spat .13

et [0 n’PW} 'w' !

X
Sp[tal (/r.u-. \r
Windso? £
Cm';\'yr‘ u;s‘;‘ ”2"

Path ‘{9‘ Patn

" " — T =l N



What would Windsor Town Council be like?

This is an impossible question to answer. It can only be decided by:
Windsor Town Council and its Town Councillors
The Town Council’s resources, including assets and finances

The ambition, vision and determination of the Town Council

..... and ultimately, the residents of Windsor.



Any Questions ?



This page is intentionally left blank



Powers and Duties of Parish Councils

Function

Powers & Duties

Statutory Provisions

Access land

Power to enforce byelaws made by
another authority

Countryside and Rights of
Way Act 2000, s. 17

Allotments Duty to provide allotments. Power to Small Holdings &
improve and adapt land for allotments, Allotments Act 1908, ss.
and to let grazing rights 23, 26, and 42
Baths and Powers relating to provision of public Public Health Act 1936, ss.
washhouses baths, washhouses and bathing huts 221-223 and 225 -227
Burial Power to acquire and maintain Open Spaces Act 1906, Ss
grounds, Power to provide 9and 10;
cemeteries Power to agree to maintain monuments Local Government Act
and and memorials 1972, s. 214;
crematoria Power to contribute towards expenses Parish Councils and Burial

of cemeteries

Authorities (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1970, s. 1
Local Government Act
1972, s.214(6)

Bus shelters

Power to provide and maintain shelters

Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions)

Act1953,s.4
Bye-laws Power to make bye-laws in regard to Public Health Act 1875, s.
pleasure grounds 164
Cycle parks Road Traffic Regulation Act
Baths and washhouses 1984, s.57(7)
Open spaces and burial grounds Public Health Act 1936,
Mortuaries and post-mortem rooms s.223
Public Conveniences Open Spaces Act 1906,
ss.15and 12
Public Health Act 1936,
s.198
Public Health Act 1936, s.
87
Clocks Power to provide public clocks Parish Councils Act 1957,
s.2
Closed Powers as to maintenance Commons Act 1899, s.5
churchyards

43




Function

Powers & Duties

Statutory Provisions

Commons Power for parish council to contribute Commons Act 1899, s.5
to expense relating to scheme for the
regulation and management of a
common.
Common Powers in relation to providing common Smallholdings and
pastures pasture Allotments Act 1908, s.34
Conference Power to provide and encourage the Local Government Act
facilities use of facilities 1972,s.144

Community

Power to provide and equip buildings

Local Government

centres for use of clubs having athletic, social (Miscellaneous Provisions)
or recreational objectives Act1976s.19
Crime Powers to install and maintain Local Government and
prevention equipment and establish and maintain Rating Act 1997, s.31
a scheme for detection or prevention of
crime
Drainage Power to deal with ponds and ditches Public Health Act 1936,

s.260

Entertainment
and the arts

Provision of entertainment and support
of the arts

Local Government Act
1972, s.145

Financial Duty to require information Local Government Act

assistance 1972, s.137A

General Power to incur expenditure for certain Local Government Act

powers purposes 1972,s.137

Gifts Power to accept Local Government Act
1972,5s.139

Highways Power to maintain footpaths and Highways Act 1980,

bridleways

Power to light roads and public places
Provision of litter bins

Powers to provide parking places for
bicycles and motor-cycles, and other
vehicles

Power to enter into agreement as to
dedication and widening

ss.43,50

Parish Councils Act 1957,
s.3;

Highways Act 1980, s.301
Litter Act 1983, ss.5,6
Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984, ss.57,63

Highways Act 1980,

44




Function

Powers & Duties

Statutory Provisions

Power to provide roadside seats and
shelters

Consent of parish council required for
ending maintenance of highway at
public expense, or for stopping up or
diversion of highway

Power to complain to highway authority
as to unlawful stopping up or
obstruction of highway or unlawful
encroachment on roadside wastes
Power to provide traffic sighs and other
objects or devices warning of danger
Power to plant trees and lay out grass

ss.30,72

Parish Councils Act 1957,
s.1

Highways Act 1980,
ss.47,116

Highways Act 1980, s.130
Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984, s.72

Highways Act 1980, s.96

Investments Power to participate in schemes of Trustee Investments Act
collective investment 1961, s.11
Land Power to acquire by agreement, to Local Government Act
appropriate, to dispose of 1972, ss.124, 126, 127
Power to accept gifts of land Local Government Act
1972,s.139
Litter Provision of receptacles Litter Act 1983, ss.5,6
Lotteries Powers to promote Lotteries and Amusements
Act 1976, s.7
Mortuaries Powers to provide mortuaries and post Public Health Act 1936,
and post mortem rooms s.198
mortem
rooms

Open spaces

Power to acquire land and maintain

Public Health Act 1875,
s.164

Open Spaces Act 1906,
ss.9and 10
Parish Powers to direct as to their custody Local Government Act
documents 1972,s.226
Public Power to provide buildings for public Local Government Act

buildings and
village hall

meetings and assemblies

1972,s.133

45




Function

Powers & Duties

Statutory Provisions

Public
conveniences

Powers relating to provision of public
conveniences

Public Health Act 1936,
s.87

Recreation Power to acquire land for or to provide (see Local Government Act
public walks, pleasure grounds and 1972,
open spaces and to manage and Sched.14 para.27)
control them Public Health Act 1875,
Power to provide gymnasiums, playing s.164
fields, holiday camps Public Health Acts
Provision of boating pools Amendment Act 1890 s.44
Open Spaces Act 1906,
ss.9and 10
Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1976, s.19
Public Health Act 1961,
s.54
Town and Right to be notified of planning Town and Country Planning
country applications Act 1990, Sched.1, para.8
planning
Tourism Power to encourage visitors and Local Government Act
provide conference and other facilities 1972, s.144
Traffic Powers to contribute financially to Highways Act 1980, s.274A
calming traffic calming schemes
Transport Powers in relation to car-sharing Local Government and
schemes, taxi fare concessions and Rating Act 1997, s.26, 28
information about transport and 29
Powers to make grants for bus services Transport Act 1985, s.106A
War Power to maintain, repair, protect and War Memorials (Local
memorials alter war memorials Authorities' Powers) Act
1923, s.1; as extended by
Local Government Act
1948, 5.133
Water supply Power to utilise well, spring or stream Public Health Act 1936,

and to provide facilities for obtaining
water from them

s.125

46




$r House of Commons
gﬁg Library

By Mark Sandford

Parish and town councils:
recent issues

15 September 2021

Summary
Parish councils
Finance and the precept
Parish council powers
Creating new parish councils
Complaints regarding parish councils
Parish and town councils: recent policy changes




Number 04827

Image Credits
High Street market MG_3052 by Carol. Licensed under CC BY 2.0 / image
cropped.

Disclaimer

The Commons Library does not intend the information in our research
publications and briefings to address the specific circumstances of any
particular individual. We have published it to support the work of MPs. You
should not rely upon it as legal or professional advice, or as a substitute for
it. We do not accept any liability whatsoever for any errors, omissions or
misstatements contained herein. You should consult a suitably qualified
professional if you require specific advice or information. Read our briefing

JLegal help: where to go and how to pay’ for further information about

sources of legal advice and help. This information is provided subject to the
conditions of the Open Parliament Licence.

Feedback
Every effort is made to ensure that the information contained in these publicly

available briefings is correct at the time of publication. Readers should be
aware however that briefings are not necessarily updated to reflect
subsequent changes.

If you have any comments on our briefings please email

papers@parliament.uk. Please note that authors are not always able to

engage in discussions with members of the public who express opinions
about the content of our research, although we will carefully consider and
correct any factual errors.

You can read our feedback and complaints policy and our editorial policy at

commonslibrary.parliament.uk. If you have general questions about the work
of the House of Commons email hcenquiries@parliament.uk.

48


https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/sn03207/
mailto:papers@parliament.uk
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/
mailto:hcenquiries@parliament.uk

Parish and town councils: recent issues

Contents

Summary

1  Parish councils

1.1 What are parish and town councils?

1.2 Where do parish and town councils exist?

1.3 Charter trustees

1.4 Differences between parish councils and principal authorities

1.5 Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland
2  Finance and the precept

2.1 Other sources of finance

3 Parish council powers

3.1 Parish meetings

3.2 Parish polls

3.3 Co-option: ordinary elections

3.4 Co-option: by-elections

3.5 Frequency of co-option

4  Creating new parish councils

4.1 Creation and abolition

4.2 Community governance reviews

4.3 Petitions

4.4 Changes to system for establishing parish councils
4.5 Creation of new wards

4.6 Small parishes

4.7 Alternatives to parish councils

49

n

12

13

14

14

15

16

17

18

18

19

20

21

22

22

22

3 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021



Parish and town councils: recent issues

4.8 Parishes in London 23
5 Complaints regarding parish councils 24
5.1 Audit 25
5.2 Standards 25
6 Parish and town councils: recent policy changes 26
6.1 Parish council funding of churches 26
6.2 Public participation 27
6.3 Online meetings 27

6.4 The Local Government Ombudsman and parish and town councils 28

6.5 Council tax support and precept levels 28

6.6 Parish councils and business rates 29

6.7 Parish councils and neighbourhood planning 30

6.8 Cheques 30

6.9 Electronic agendas 31
50

4 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021



Parish and town councils: recent issues

51

5 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021



Parish and town councils: recent issues

Summary

This note addresses a range of recent issues affecting parish and town
councils. It includes an explanation of what they are and their place in the
local government structure; the powers they can exercise; how they may be
established and abolished; and how complaints about them may be pursued.
It also includes details of some policy issues that have arisen in relation to
parish and town councils in the 2010s and early 2020s.

This note applies principally to England. In Scotland and Wales, community
councils (the equivalent of parish and town councils) are a devolved matter.
No equivalent to parish and town councils exists in Northern Ireland.

52

6 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021



Parish and town councils: recent issues

1.1

Parish councils

What are parish and town councils?

Parish and town councils are the tier of local government that is closest to the
electorate in England. Collectively, they are often referred to as ‘local
councils’. County, district and unitary authorities, by contrast, are often
referred to in legislation and guidance as ‘principal authorities’. Parish and
town councils are represented by the National Association of Local Councils
(NALC), and by county-based associations.

Parish councils may resolve to call themselves ‘town’," or ‘community’,
‘neighbourhood’, or ‘village’ councils.? A number of parish councils for areas
which have been granted city status by Royal Charter are known as ‘city
councils’ (e.g. Salisbury, Truro, Ripon). This is known as the ‘style’ of a
council. It has no effect on the status or legal powers available to the council.
The chairman of a town council may style him- or herself Mayor.

Elected parish and town councils were first established by the Local
Government Act 1894. This Act removed all non-ecclesiastical functions from
church parish councils and passed them to newly-established local elected
bodies, which became known as ‘parish councils’.? The local church bodies
are now known as ‘parochial church councils’ and are not linked in any way to
parish and town councils.

The Local Government Act 1972 entirely restructured local government within
England and Wales, and it provides the legal foundation for the existence of
today’s parish and town councils. Large parts of the 1972 Act have now been
superseded with regard to principal authorities, but it still governs much of
the workings of parish and town councils.

! See Local Government Act 1972, section 245 (6).

2 See Local Government Act 1972, sections 12A and 17A, inserted by the Local Government and Public
Involvement in Health Act 2007.

3 See K P Poole and Bryan Keith-Lucas, Parish Government 1894-1994, NALC, 1994, pp31-37.

53

7 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


http://www.nalc.gov.uk/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/Vict/56-57/73
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/Vict/56-57/73
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2007/28/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2007/28/contents

1.2

1.3

Parish and town councils: recent issues

Where do parish and town councils exist?

There are some 10,000 parish councils in England,* some 730 community and
town councils in Wales, and some 1,200 active community councils in
Scotland.®

It is common for elections to parish councils to be uncontested, and for
members to be co-opted where the number of candidates is fewer than the
number of seats available. Party political affiliations are rare amongst most
parish councillors, though party groups do exist on many of the larger town
councils.

Parish councils cover only some 40% of the population of England:
historically they have been far less common in urban areas.® 83 district or
unitary councils have no parish councils in their areas. Many of these
localities have never had parish councils (or ecclesiastical parishes). Until
2007, Inner London (the area of the former London County Council) had never
had parish councils, and parish councils were not permitted in Greater
London between 1935 and 2007.

Charter trustees

Charter trustees are established under section 246 of the Local Government
Act 1972. They are established in towns and cities which have a Royal Charter
but which have lost their status as local government entities in previous local
government reorganisations. Their members are the elected councillors for
the area that they cover, and they manage small budgets.

Across England, sixteen charter trustees exist as of May 2021. Charter trustees
have most recently been created for Bournemouth, Poole and Taunton
following local government restructuring in the late 2010s. When a new parish
or town council is established for an area with charter trustees, the new body
takes on their role and the charter trustees are discontinued. The most recent
example of this was in Bexhill in 2021. As part of the plans for unitary local
government in Somerset, proposals exist to create a new town council for
Taunton from May 2023 and thus abolish its charter trustees.

* See NALC, About Local Councils. MHCLG’s 2021-22 table of council tax receipts lists 10,221 parish
councils.

See Scottish Government, Community Empowerment.
® See NALC, About Local Councils

o

54

8 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
https://www.somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk/news/swt-sets-out-process-for-community-governance-review/
https://www.somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk/news/swt-sets-out-process-for-community-governance-review/
https://www.nalc.gov.uk/about-local-councils
https://www.gov.scot/policies/community-empowerment/community-councils
https://www.nalc.gov.uk/about-local-councils

1.4

1.5

Parish and town councils: recent issues

Differences between parish councils and
principal authorities

A number of provisions familiar from English local government legislation
covering principal authorities do not cover, or apply differently to, parish and
town councils:

e The legislation regarding executive arrangements (mayors / cabinets)
and overview and scrutiny in the Localism Act 2011, originally introduced
in the Local Government Act 2000, does not apply to parish councils;

e The requirements for committees to be politically balanced, in the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989, do not apply to parish councils;

e English parish and town councils are not covered by the Local
Government Ombudsman;

e Limited requirements for audit exist for councils with an income and
expenditure of under £6.5 million (a limit which applies to all parish and
town councils); see the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014.7 Councils with an income and expenditure of under £25,000 are
not subject to routine audit (see section 5 below).

Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland

The remarks in this paper apply to parish councils in England unless
otherwise indicated. ‘Community councils’ exist in Scotland and Wales:
responsibility for them is devolved.

Welsh parish councils were included in the Local Government Act 1894. They
were renamed ‘community councils’ by the Local Government Act 1972. Welsh
community councils cover some 70% of the population of Wales, existing
throughout the country with the exception of the largest cities. The activities
of community councils are covered by the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales.

Following a study of the sector by researchers at the University of Aberystwyth
in 2003, the Welsh Government published an evidence review on community
and town councils in 2014, followed by an independent review in 2018. The
review made a number of recommendations, including:

e  Establishing community or town councils in all areas which do not
currently have one;

55

9 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/22/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
https://www.ombudsman.wales/fact-sheets/complaints-aginsts-community-town-councils-general-information/
https://www.ombudsman.wales/fact-sheets/complaints-aginsts-community-town-councils-general-information/
https://www.aber.ac.uk/en/media/departmental/dges/pdf/39209_Summary_English.pdf
https://www.aber.ac.uk/en/media/departmental/dges/research/newpoliticalgeographies/140120-developing-comprehensive-understanding-community-town-councils1-en.pdf
https://www.aber.ac.uk/en/media/departmental/dges/research/newpoliticalgeographies/140120-developing-comprehensive-understanding-community-town-councils1-en.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-05/independent-review-panel-on-community-and-town-councils-in-wales-final-report.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/section/6

Parish and town councils: recent issues

e Encouraging Welsh local authorities to transfer ‘place-based services’ to
community councils wherever possible. These might include street
furniture; community assets; museums and libraries; street bin collection
and grass cutting; footpaths; open spaces; community transport; and
leisure centres;®

e Acomprehensive review of town and community council boundaries;

e Mandatory training for community and town councillors, and mandatory
qualifications for clerks.

The report also noted that 64% of town and community council seats in Wales
were uncontested at their most recent election.

The Auditor General for Wales published a paper in October 2020 entitled
Euture audit arrangements for community and town councils in Wales. This
followed a consultation published in January 2020. The paper announced a
three-year pattern of two limited procedure audits and one transaction-
based audit for all community and town councils. Audit of Welsh community

and town councils is governed by the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.

Scotland has around 1,200 active community councils, established under the

Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.¢ Scottish community councils have no
defined functions. Section 51(2) of the 1973 Act specifies:

In addition to any other purpose which a community council may
pursue, the general purpose of a community council shall be to
ascertain, co-ordinate and express to the local authorities for its
area, and to public authorities, the views of the community which it
represents, in relation to matters for which these authorities are
responsible, and to take such action in the interests of that
community as appears to it to be expedient and practicable.

In 2011, the Scottish Government set up a short-life working group to examine

the future of community councils. This produced a report in 2012, which
recommended better sharing of good practice and experience between
community councils, and more joint working between them and local
authorities.” Recent developments can now be found on the Scottish

In Northern Ireland, civil parish councils did not form part of the Local
Government Act 1898, which reorganised local government throughout
Ireland. There has therefore never been an equivalent of the directly elected
English parish council in Northern Ireland. No proposals were made to
introduce them in the 2014-15 local government reorganisation, nor in the

preceding one, which culminated in the Local Government Act (Northern
Ireland) 1972.

¢ Ibid., pi5
® Scottish Government, Community Councils
' Community Council Short-Life Working Group, Report and recommendations, 2012

56

10 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/future-audit-arrangements-community-and-town-councils-wales
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/23/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1973/65/contents
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Government/local-government/CommunityCouncils/CCShortLifeWorkingGroup
https://www.communitycouncils.scot/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/apni/1972/9/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/apni/1972/9/contents
https://www.gov.scot/policies/community-empowerment/community-councils/
https://www2.gov.scot/resource/0040/00403921.pdf

Parish and town councils: recent issues

Finance and the precept

Parish councils may raise a ‘precept’ on the council tax bills produced by their
local billing authority (unitary authority or district council). This is essentially
a demand for a sum to be collected through the council tax system. Council
tax-payers cannot refuse to pay it, and the billing authority cannot refuse to
levy it. It is the only source of tax revenue available to parish councils.

Historically, parish councils were able to raise a ‘rate’ from the time of their
establishment in 1894: this was linked to their then duties under the Poor
Laws. Rates were levied on non-domestic and domestic property until 1990,
when the rates were replaced by the National Non-Domestic Rate and the
Community Charge respectively. Since then, parishes have precepted on
domestic property only, via the Community Charge and then the council tax.

Charter trustees also have the right to precept on their principal authorities.
All sixteen set a precept in 2021-22. The Middle Temple and Inner Temple have
the right to precept upon the City of London.

In 2021-22, MHCLG data shows a total of £617.27 million being levied via the
parish precept (excluding Charter Trustees and Temples), which constitutes
1.8% of the total council tax demand. 8,877 parish councils raised a precept.
The average precept raised on a Band D property is £71.86."

In 2018-19, the largest amount precepted by a parish council was £3.41
million, and the lowest was £22. The largest amount per Band D household
was £371.17 and the smallest 26p. The largest taxbase of a precepting parish
was 36,636, and the smallest 0.8."™

Since 2012-13, the Government has had the power to require parish and town
councils to hold a referendum if their precept increases by more than a set
threshold. Thresholds are imposed on principal authorities every year (see the
Library briefing Council tax: local referendums), but to date the Government
has never extended them to parish councils. Initial proposals were made in

" See Council Tax levels set by local authorities: England 2021-22.

2 See the statistical release Council Tax statistics for town and parish councils in England:2018 to 2019.
The taxbase is the number of households liable for the precept, expressed in terms of Band D
households. Households in council tax bands other than D are expressed in terms of the proportion of
a Band D bill that they pay, as set in section 5 (1) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.
Therefore, for instance, a Band E property counts as 11/9 of a property when counting the taxbase.
This is why the taxbases quoted here have decimal points.

57

1 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/sn05682/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/972908/Council_Tax_Levels_Set_by_Local_Authorities_in_England_2021-22.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-council-tax
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1992/14/contents

2.1

Parish and town councils: recent issues

respect of the 2017-18 financial year, but they were not proceeded with
following objections from the sector.™

The average increase in parish precepts in 2021-22 was 2.8%. This was a fall
from 4.0% in 2020-21, 4.9% in 2019-20, 4.9% in 2018-19 and 6.3% in 2017-18.™

Other sources of finance

Parish and town councils have general powers to employ staff, own and
manage assets and funds, and give grants to local bodies. They can accept
gifts from parishioners, and bid for funds from grant-making bodies or
Government initiatives. They may set up lotteries to raise funds locally,
though they must hold a licence from the Gambling Commission under section

98 of the Gambling Act 2005.

Parish and town councils may borrow money, including from the Public Works
Loan Board, with approval from the Government.

Parish and town councils are not covered by section 31 of the Local
Government Act 2003, which permits the Government to pay grants for any
purpose to local authorities. Thus the Government has no power to pay
general grants to parish and town councils. Powers to pay grants for specific
purposes exist: for instance, section 120 of the Localism Act 2011 permits
money to be paid to any body in connection with neighbourhood planning.

® DCLG, The 2017/18 Local Government Finance Settlement: Technical Consultation Paper, 2016, p.8;
see also HCDeb 19 Dec 2017 c919

" See Council Tax levels set by local quthorities: England 2021-22, pT1

58

12 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/19/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/26/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/26/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018-technical-consultation
http://hansard.parliament.uk/commons/2017-12-19/debates/59666570-ED88-4EAC-9019-80884C02738E/LocalGovernmentFinanceSettlement
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/972908/Council_Tax_Levels_Set_by_Local_Authorities_in_England_2021-22.pdf

Parish and town councils: recent issues

Parish council powers

Parish and town councils hold a range of powers, found in various pieces of
legislation. A list of some of the more significant powers can be found on the
parishcouncils.uk website. They are also subject to legal requirements
regarding the holding of meetings, Freedom of Information, and councillor
conduct. Many smaller parish councils make only limited use of their powers,
whilst some larger town councils have substantial staff teams and may run a
number of local facilities.

The only duty applying solely to parish councils and not to other tiers of
government is the power to obtain and supply land for allotments if local
demand cannot be met.”

Parish councils in England and community councils in Wales may use the
General Power of Competence.' A parish council wishing to use the power
must formally resolve that it is an ‘eligible council’. The qualifications for
eligibility are that the clerk has completed a course in local administration,
and that at least two thirds of councillors have been elected (i.e. not co-
opted)."” These provisions also apply to community councils in Wales. When a
Welsh community council wishes to use the general power, the most recent
audit opinion on the community council’s accounts must also be unqualified.™

Parish councils are entitled to make proposals for changes in legislation
under the Sustainable Communities Act 2007 and its successor, the
Sustainable Communities Act 2007 (Amendment) Act 2010. Initially they were

not included amongst the local authorities permitted to do this: this was

changed by the Sustainable Communities (Parish Councils) Order 2013 (SI
2013/2275)."

Parish councils may request the ‘listing’ of an ‘asset of community value’

under the Community Right to Bid; bid to run local public services via the
Community Right to Challenge; or lead the development of a neighbourhood
plan or a Community Right to Build order.

Either the parish council itself, or individual parish councillors, may act as
trustees for a local charity. This task fell frequently to the 19th century
ecclesiastical parish councils, which had a leading role in poor relief.
Parochial charities today are subject to charity legislation (including the

5 See the Small Holdings and Allotments Act 1908, s23.

¢ See the Localism Act 2011 s1&ff; Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 s24

" See the Parish Councils (General Power of Competence) (Prescribed Conditions) Order 2012 (S!
2012/965).

® Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021, s30

' See also the Library briefing paper Sustainable Communities Act (SN/PC/04724).

59

13 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.parishcouncils.uk/
https://www.parishcouncils.uk/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2007/23/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/21/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/2275/contents/made
http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/research/briefing-papers/SN06366/localism-act-assets-of-community-value
http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/research/briefing-papers/SN06365/localism-act-2011-community-right-to-challenge
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2
https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200130/common_projects/42/neighbourhood_planning/2
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/Edw7/8/36/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/965/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/enacted
http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/research/briefing-papers/SN04724/sustainable-communities-act-2007

3.1

3.2

Parish and town councils: recent issues

Charities Act 2006) and to regulation by the Charity Commission. Parish
councillors who act as trustees must distinguish their role as councillor from
their role as trustee, even if they were appointed to represent the parish
council on the charity.

The National Association of Local Councils published a report titled Paints of
Light in 2018, highlighting several dozen examples of the type of work done by
parish councils across England.

Parish meetings

The Local Government Act 1972 requires a parish meeting to take place in all
parishes. A parish meeting is a distinct legal entity from a parish council. It
must hold two meetings per year, one of which must take place between 1
March and 1June.® A parish with a population of over 300 may choose to
constitute a separate parish council, but it is under no obligation to do so.
Where a parish council exists, the parish meeting must still take place, once a
year, between 1 March and 1 June, and the parish council must meet,
separately, at least once per year.”

Parish polls

A parish poll (i.e. a referendum) can be demanded on any subject by ten
electors, or one third of electors present (whichever is the lower number) at a
parish meeting.?” The poll must be organised by the district or unitary council
in the area, but the parish council must pay. The outcome is not binding on
the parish council. Further details are available in the Library briefing paper

Local government: polls and referendums.
Section 42 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 permits the

Secretary of State to amend the rules around parish polls via regulations.*
This followed suggestions that vexatious use was being made of parish polls
by local electors with an axe to grind.*

A consultation was issued in late 2014, closing on 30 January 2015.% The
consultation proposed that a poll should be approved by a majority at the
parish meeting, and that that majority should consist of 10% of the parish
meeting’s electors (up to a maximum of 60). The consultation also proposed
restricting the subject matter of parish polls to matters on which the parish

% In practice, there are no sanctions in existence if a parish meeting is not held.
*' See the Local Government Act 1972, sections 9-19.

2 | ocal Government Act 1972, schedule 12 paragraph 18.

% Local Government and Accountability Act 2014, section 42(3).

* DCLG, Parish polls, 2014, p14

% DCLG, Parish polls, 2014

60

14 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/50/contents
https://www.nalc.gov.uk/news/entry/1141-new-nalc-publication-shines-light-on-150-local-councils
https://www.nalc.gov.uk/news/entry/1141-new-nalc-publication-shines-light-on-150-local-councils
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
https://researchbriefings.parliament.uk/ResearchBriefing/Summary/SN03409
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/section/42/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/parish-polls
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/parish-polls

3.3

Parish and town councils: recent issues

council or parish meeting could make a decision, or express a view as a
statutory consultee. The consultation document stated that this proposal
reflected instances where “individuals have misused the current wide
definition to call for polls on matters which were unrelated to the local area
or the functions of a parish”.

No response has been published to this consultation. An answer to a
Parliamentary Question on 12 September 2017 stated that “work on revising
the regulations has started”.?® In October 2018, the then Minister for Local
Government, Rishi Sunak, told the NALC annual conference:

You told me that Parish Polls needed reforming - we’ve listened and
we’re now updating the rules to modernise them and ensure they
better meet your needs. | hope to introduce new regulations on this
as soon as parliamentary time allows.?”

In Wales, the power to demand a parish poll was abolished by section 162 of

the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021.

The Law Commission’s interim report on its review of electoral law, published
in February 2016, recommended that the Government should define more
specifically which matters can be subject to a parish poll:

In our view, under the current law, a parish poll question cannot lie
outside the proper range of decision making by a parish council, or
be devoid of practical application. Nevertheless, our view is that it
would be helpful if the Government were to define the circumstances
in which such a poll might be called. Given that this is a matter under
review, we will make the general recommendation that legislation
should define the issues of parish concern that may be put to a
parish poll.?®

Co-option: ordinary elections

Where a parish council has not filled all its seats at an ordinary election, the
councillors who have been elected (unopposed) may co-opt additional
members until all of the council’s seats are filled.* A parish council must have
filled at least one-third of its seats through election (which may be
uncontested) in order to co-opt additional councillors. Temporary
appointment of members of parish and community councils where the council
is not quorate is provided for by section 91 of the Local Government Act 1972:

Where there are so many vacancies in the office of parish or
community councillor that the parish or community council are

% PQ HC 7727 2017-19, 12 Sep 2019

¥’ MHCLG, Rishi Sunak MP’s speech to the NALC conference, 31 October 2018.
% Law Commission, Electoral Law: An Interim Report, 2016, p. 205.

» See the Representation of the People Act 1985, s21

61

15 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/part/V/crossheading/acceptance-resignation-and-vacation-of-office-and-casual-vacancies
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-questions/detail/2017-09-04/7727
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/national-association-of-local-councils-conference-2018
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=2ahUKEwjApKqnntTeAhVBh6YKHepCD10QFjAAegQICBAC&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.lawcom.gov.uk%2Fapp%2Fuploads%2F2016%2F02%2Felectoral_law_interim_report.pdf&usg=AOvVaw2FiSdeZ_nyTwf9Cp8jMvAe
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1985/50/contents

3.4

Parish and town councils: recent issues

unable to act, the district council [or Welsh principal council] may by
order appoint persons to fill all or any of the vacancies until other
councillors are elected and take up office.

There are no fixed procedures for how the decision to co-opt must be made,
other than that it must be taken at a meeting of the council. The parish
council guide Arnold-Baker on Local Council Administration says that all
successful co-optees must receive an absolute majority of votes in favour of
co-opting them. This means that, where multiple co-options are taking place,
it may be necessary to take separate votes to co-opt each individual
member.3°

Co-option: by-elections

Section 89(6) of the Local Government Act 1972 states that a casual vacancy
(i.e. a vacancy requiring a by-election) among parish or community
councillors shall be filled by election or by the parish or community council in
accordance with rules made under section 36 of the Representation of the

People Act 1983.%

When a ‘casual vacancy’ arises on a parish or town council, the council must
give public notice of the fact. A by-election to fill the vacancy is then only held
if it is requested by ten local electors (known as ‘claiming the poll’). This
request must be made to the district council, within 14 days of the parish
council giving public notice of the vacancy.* Any election must be held within
60 days of the public notice of the vacancy.

‘Public notice’ must be given in accordance with section 232 of the Local
Government Act 1972: by “posting the notice in some conspicuous place or
places within the area of the local authority” and “in such other manner, if
any, as appears to the local authority to be desirable for giving publicity to
the notice”.

If no request is received for a by-election, then the parish or town council
must fill the vacancy by co-option (unless the next regular election is less
than six months away, in which case the seat may be left empty until that
time).*

30 paul Clayden, Arnold Boker on LocalCounC|lAdm|n|strot|on 10" ed, 2016, p49-50
, 2006 No. 3305
(S1 2006/3305),

paragraphs 5 (2) and (3).
# Ibid, paragraphs 5 (5) and (6).

62

16 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/part/V/crossheading/acceptance-resignation-and-vacation-of-office-and-casual-vacancies
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1983/2/section/36
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1983/2/section/36
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/3305/introduction/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/3305/contents/made

3.5

Parish and town councils: recent issues

Frequency of co-option

Co-option can be controversial, due to the perception that it permits parish or
town councils to operate as ‘closed shops’. No comprehensive data is
available on the number of councillors who have been co-opted. However,
NALC published a report that surveyed parish and town councillors between
November 2017 and June 2018. Of 2,821 respondents, 38% were co-opted,
33% elected unopposed, and 29% won a contested election.** The report also
surveyed parish and town councils themselves. Of 842 responding councils,
just over 50% reported co-opting councillors following the 2019 election -
indicating that there were fewer candidates at the election than there were
seats available on the council.

The final report of the Councillor Commission (established by De Montfort
University with the Municipal Journal), published in 2017, found some support
for the process of co-option from within the parish and town council sector, as
a valid alternative to the electoral process. Respondents to the Commission
suggested that:

...not all those interested in becoming councillors are of the same
type of person who is ready to contest an election to a principal
council. In other words, the image of an ‘election’ as an intense,
party political and personal contest deters many from standing.
Thus, co-option provides an alternative route on to the council for
those lacking the confidence for confronting an election process and
that this route may also provide an alternative for enhancing
minority representation on parish councils and increasing the
diversity of the parish councillor population.®

3 NALC, Local council elections 2019, 2020. The report does not suggest that the survey of councillors
was representative. Councillors elected unopposed are regarded as being elected, not co-opted.
% De Montfort University / Municipal Journal, The Voice of the Councillor, 2017, p90

63

17 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.nalc.gov.uk/library/our-work/elections-1/3256-local-councils-elections-2019-report/file
https://www.nalc.gov.uk/library/news-stories/2490-the-voice-of-the-councillor-2017-final-version/file

Parish and town councils: recent issues

4.1

Creating new parish councils

Creation and abolition

No comprehensive data source exists on the creation and abolition of parish
and town councils in England. NALC (the National Association of Local
Councils) suggested that, in 2018, there were some 270 more parish and town
councils in England than there were just over 15 years ago.*®

Local government restructuring in the 2010s has frequently led to the creation
of new parish or town councils, particularly in larger towns. This has often
followed the creation of larger unitary authorities in place of county and
district councils. Examples of new town councils include Salisbury,
Christchurch, Weymouth, Northampton, and Shrewsbury. Elsewhere, town
councils have been created in previously unparished areas that have had
their own borough or district councils in the past, such as Ramsgate, Bexhill,
Kidderminster and Lowestoft.

Parish councils can be ‘grouped’. This sees a single council established for a
small number of neighbouring parish areas. The individual parishes must still
hold their own parish meetings. MHCLG council tax data for 2021-22 lists 648
groupings of parish councils in England.

Parish councils may be abolished by being merged with, or divided between,
neighbouring parishes. More rarely, a parish council may be abolished
entirely, and its area will have no parish council representation.

Both the Coalition Government (2010-15) and the preceding Labour
Government (2005-10) spoke favourably of parish and town councils. The

2006 local government white paper, Strong and prosperous communities,

stated:

We will make it clear that there will be a presumption in favour of the
setting up of parish councils so that local authorities will be expected
to grant communities’ requests to set up new parish councils, except
where there are good reasons not to, and that existing parish

councils are not to be abolished against the wishes of local people.?

The Coalition Government’s 2013 consultation paper on setting up new parish
councils said:

% See NALC, Create a Council, accessed on 30 November 2018.
¥ DCLG, Strong and prosperous communities, 2006, p43

64

18 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20120919132719/http:/www.communities.gov.uk/documents/localgovernment/pdf/152456.pdf
https://www.nalc.gov.uk/our-work/create-a-council

4.2

Parish and town councils: recent issues

We believe that localism is best achieved when it is led by the local
communities themselves. We see town and parish councils as
playing a vital role in helping local people to make this happen; it is
for this reason we want to support those neighbourhoods who want
to set up a parish council.®

Technical guidance and support for setting up new councils is available from
the National Association of Local Councils (NALC).*

Parish councils do not have the power unilaterally to move from one principal
council to another, though this is occasionally proposed. For instance, the
town of Yarm held a referendum in May 2014 on moving from Stockton
Borough Council to Hambleton District Council in North Yorkshire. The
proposal was supported by 1,465 votes to 177 on a 24% turnout. However,
such a change would need to be recommended by the Local Government
Boundary Commission for England and approved by Parliament.

There have been instances of parish areas, or parts of parish areas, moving
between principal councils in the past, but this has normally happened as
part of a wider boundary review or a process of creating unitary authorities.
For instance, several parishes moved from North Yorkshire into the York City
Council area in the 1990s, when York City Council became a unitary authority.

Community governance reviews

The procedure to create a new parish council can be found in the Local
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. Under the 2007 Act, a
principal council in England may undertake a ‘governance review’, either on
its own initiative or in response to a petition from local electors (see section
4.3). The governance review must examine whether one or more parish
councils should be created, divided or merged in order to ensure that local
government arrangements are ‘effective and convenient’ and ‘reflect the
identities and interests of the community in that area’.*° Guidance was most
recently published in March 2010.* The guidance recommends that a
community governance review should take place every 10-15 years.*

In conducting the review, the council must consult local electors and any
other persons or bodies which are considered by the council to have an
interest in the review. The guidance emphasises that councils should take
various factors into account, including the impact of community governance

38 DCLG, Governmen
councils, 2013, p.4

% See NALC, How to create your own local council and NALC, Create a Council, accessed on 30
November 2018.

® These phrases are from section 93(4) of the 2007 Act.

*' DCLG/LGBCE, Guidance on community governance reviews, March 2010
2 |pid., p. 13

65

19 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2007/28/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2007/28/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/238996/Government_response_to_consultation_on_making_it_easier_to_set_up_new_town_and_parish_councils.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/238996/Government_response_to_consultation_on_making_it_easier_to_set_up_new_town_and_parish_councils.pdf
https://www.nalc.gov.uk/library/publications/power-to-the-people/1647-section-2-how-to-create-your-own-local-council-july-2015/file
https://www.nalc.gov.uk/our-work/create-a-council
http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/localgovernment/pdf/1527635.pdf

4.3

Parish and town councils: recent issues

arrangements on community cohesion, and the size, population and
boundaries of a local community or parish.

The review may recommend that the parish remains as it is; that the area of
the parish be altered or merged with another parish; or that the parish
council should be abolished. For instance, a town council could seek to
extend its area to cover a newly-built housing estate on the edge of the town;
or a newly-expanded village could seek to ‘secede’ from an existing parish
council area. There is no requirement for a community governance review to
adhere to historical parish boundaries, or county or district ward boundaries.

There is no guarantee that a community governance review will result in a
new parish.*” The guidance states that ‘clear and sustained’ support for the
abolition of a parish council (i.e. over two terms of elected office) should be
demonstrated before a council is abolished.*

There is no central record of the outcomes of community governance reviews,
or of any councils that are created or abolished as a result.

Petitions

A council which receives a valid petition is under a duty to carry out a
community governance review as requested by the petitioners, unless it has
already conducted a review of the same area, or of substantially the same
area, during the previous two years. Once the review has started (that is, the
terms of reference have been published), it must be concluded (i.e. the
recommendations must be published) within 12 months.

A petition may relate to any area, whether currently parished or unparished,
within the geographical limits of the local authority. Principal authorities may
themselves implement the outcome of a review by order, provided that they
have carried out the required consultation.

Petitions should be submitted to the principal council (the district or unitary
authority), and it will be for them to take the matter forward by means of a
community governance review. A petition must meet the conditions set out in
section 80 of the 2007 Act in order to be valid. It must define the area to
which the review is to relate and may include a map. It must specify one or
more recommendations which the petitioners would wish a review to consider
making. Government guidance explains that those recommendations can be
about a variety of matters, including:

e The creation of a parish;
e  The name of a parish;
e The establishment of a separate parish council within an existing parish;

# |bid., p. 27-8.
** DCLG, Community governance reviews: guidance, 2010, p.34-5

66

20 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/8312/1527635.pdf

4.4

Parish and town councils: recent issues

e The alteration of boundaries of existing parishes;

e The abolition of a parish;

e The dissolution of a parish council;

e Changes to the electoral arrangements of a parish council;

e Whether a parish should be grouped under a common parish council or
de-grouped.®

Minimum levels of support for petitions are set out in section 80 of the 2007
Act. These were amended in 2015 (see section 4.4 below):

e Ifthe petition area has fewer than 500 local government electors, the
petition must be signed by at least 37.5% (previously 50%) of the
electors;

e Ifthe petition area has between 500 and 2,500 local government
electors, the petition must be signed by at least 187 (previously 250)
electors;

e Ifthe petition area has more than 2,500 local government electors, the
petition must be signed by at least 7.5% (previously 10%) of the electors.

Changes to system for establishing parish
councils

The Government published a consultation paper entitled Making it easier to
set up new town and parish councils in October 2012, followed by a response

on 9 September 2013.*¢ The following changes were then made in 2015:%

e  The petition thresholds were reduced (see section 4.3 above);

e Community groups which have produced a neighbourhood plan will not
be required to produce a petition in order to trigger a governance
review: they will merely need to submit a ‘community governance
application’;

e Reviews must take a maximum of one year from the receipt of a valid
petition (previously the limit of one year ran from the start of the review
itself).

4 DCLG/LGBCE, Gumme_anmmmuﬂﬂy_gm@nmme_mmm Morch 2010, para 40

6 See DCLG, Gove ] e )
councils, September 2013; H_C;D_d)_9_S£p_20J3 c39WS

* See the Legislative Reform (Community Governance Reviews) Order 2015 (SI 2015/998). The response
to the consultation was published in May 2014: DCLG, Proposal to use a legislative reform order to set
up town and parish councils, 2014.

67

21 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/9360/2246057.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/9360/2246057.pdf
http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/localgovernment/pdf/1527635.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/238996/Government_response_to_consultation_on_making_it_easier_to_set_up_new_town_and_parish_councils.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/238996/Government_response_to_consultation_on_making_it_easier_to_set_up_new_town_and_parish_councils.pdf
http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201314/cmhansrd/cm130909/wmstext/130909m0001.htm#1309091000007
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/998/pdfs/uksi_20150998_en.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposal-to-use-a-legislative-reform-order-to-set-up-town-and-parish-councils
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposal-to-use-a-legislative-reform-order-to-set-up-town-and-parish-councils

4.5

4.6

4.7

Parish and town councils: recent issues

Creation of new wards

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 also
governs the creation of new wards in parish councils. Under section 90 of the
Act, a community governance review may recommend that a parish council
should continue to exist, but that changes should be made to its electoral
arrangements. Section 95 specifically requires the review to consider whether
wards should be created,*® and that it must consider ‘local ties’ and
boundaries that are ‘easily identifiable’. Under section 86 (6) of the 2007 Act,
the Local Government Boundary Commission for England must give its assent
to any changes in electoral arrangements proposed under a community
governance review.*

Small parishes

There is provision in the Local Government Act 1972 for the dissolution of the
council for a small parish. Where a parish has 150 or fewer electors, the
parish meeting may apply to the district or unitary council for the parish
council to be abolished.*° There is also a power for parish meetings to apply
to the district for two or more parishes to be grouped together under a
common parish council, or for existing grouping arrangements to be changed
or abandoned.”

Alternatives to parish councils

Principal councils must also consider other forms of community governance
when conducting a review. These may be seen either as alternatives to, or
stages towards, the establishment of a parish council. The guidance mentions
the following alternative forms of governance:

e Area committees;

e Neighbourhood management arrangements;

e Tenant management organisations;

e Area/community forums;

8 This includes consideration of new wards. In many parish councils, all the councillors are elected in a
single ward.

% DCLG/LGBCE, Guidance on community governance reviews, March 2010, p47-8

% | ocal Government Act 19792, section 10

¥ Local Government Act 1979, section 11

68

22 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2007/28/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/localgovernment/pdf/1527635.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents

4.8

Parish and town councils: recent issues

e Residents’ and tenants’ associations;

e Community associations.*?

Parishes in London

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007
reintroduced the power to create parish councils in Greater London, and
introduced it for the first time in the former London County Council area. The
last parish councils in the Greater London area were abolished in the 1930s
following the creation of several new boroughs and urban districts.

Since the passage of the 2007 Act, one new parish council has been

established in Greater London, in Queen’s Park. A community governance
review took place in Tower Hamlets in 2018-19, in response to a petition to
create a community council in Spitalfields and Banglatown. Following the

publication of the final report of the review, Tower Hamlets rejected the
proposal in July 2019.

% DCLG/LGBCE, Guidance on community governance reviews, March 2010, paras 136-146

69

23 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2007/28/contents
https://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/documents/s151988/Appendix%201%20-%20Final%20Analysis%20and%20Conclusions.pdf
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/FAQs/Statement_of_final_recommendations.aspx
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/FAQs/Statement_of_final_recommendations.aspx
http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/localgovernment/pdf/1527635.pdf

Parish and town councils: recent issues

Complaints regarding parish councils

Constituents may wish to complain about the decisions, the procedures, or
the conduct of members or staff of their parish council. There are few
remedies available in this regard outside of the four-yearly elections to the
parish council.

The route to make a complaint depends upon the subject of complaint: there
is no single organisation which oversees parish councils. The Government has
taken the view that parish councils are accountable to their electorate
principally through the ballot box. The most recent Parliamentary Question on
the issue of complaints was answered as follows:

There are various mechanisms in place for members of the public to
make complaints about their town or parish council.

These include: using the parish council’s complaints procedure;
raising the matter at the annual parish meeting; questioning, or
making an objection to, the auditor during the public inspection
period of accounts; or by joining with a group of local electors to call
for a parish poll on the issue. In instances of councillor misconduct,
complaints can be made to the principal council’s monitoring officer
who can investigate.

Central Government does not have the power to intervene in parish
council matters and believes that the current local system of redress
is proportionate to the sector and consistent with this Government's
principles on localism.®

Complaints about the behaviour of parish councillors, or employees of the
parish council, should be addressed to the chair of the parish council in the
first instance.

In general, it is not possible to have a parish council’s decision reversed at a
higher level unless it can be demonstrated that the decision is unlawful. Like
other public authorities, parish councils are subject to action in the courts
and judicial review. Though each parish council has a relationship with the
district or unitary council in whose area it lies, the district or unitary council
has little power of control or direction over the parish council. Concerns over
the legality of parish councils’ actions can be referred to the monitoring
officer of the district or unitary authority in the area.

70

24 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-question/Commons/2018-06-13/153235/

5.1

5.2

Parish and town councils: recent issues

Audit

Parish and town councils must appoint an auditor. In practice, all parish and
town councils have opted in to the collective procurement arrangements

permitted by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Their auditors are

appointed by Smaller Authorities Audit Appointments (SAAA), a not-for-profit
body established by the National Association of Local Councils (NALC), the

Society of Local Council Clerks (SLCC), and the Association of Drainage
Authorities (ADA). SAAA’s website provides details of which auditors have
been appointed to each parish or town council.

Allegations of financial irregularities in a parish council can be reported to
the auditor, who must then decide whether to investigate them. Parish
councils with an income and expenditure under £25,000 are not subject to
annual audit, but must still appoint an auditor, who is responsible for
investigating any allegations of mismanagement. This category of parish
councils is also subject to the requirements of the Transparency Code for
Smaller Authorities: see the Library briefing Local government transparency
in England.

Standards

Parish councils must establish a code of conduct for councillors, but they may
opt in to the one operated by their district or unitary authority. That authority
must investigate conduct-related allegations against parish and town
councillors. Further information is available in the Library briefing Local

. is reqime in Enaland.

The standards regime covers co-opted members as well as elected members.
Schedule 2 of the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests)
Regulations 2012 (Sl 2012/1464) lists the categories of pecuniary interests
which must be disclosed by members of parish councils. Under section 33 of
the Localism Act 2011, parish councils are permitted to grant a ‘dispensation’
to councillors to allow them to continue to take part in discussion on an issue
in which they have a pecuniary interest.

71

25 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
https://localaudits.co.uk/index.html
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/388541/Transparency_Code_for_Smaller_Authorities.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/388541/Transparency_Code_for_Smaller_Authorities.pdf
http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/research/briefing-papers/SN06046/local-government-transparency-in-england
http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/research/briefing-papers/SN06046/local-government-transparency-in-england
http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/research/briefing-papers/SN05707/local-government-the-standards-regime-in-england
http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/research/briefing-papers/SN05707/local-government-the-standards-regime-in-england
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/body/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/body/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents

Parish and town councils: recent issues

6.1

Parish and town councils: recent policy
changes

Parish council funding of churches

An issue arose in the late 2010s regarding the legal power of parish councils
to fund repairs to local churches. This is a grey area in the law, with two
statutory provisions pointing in opposite directions.

Section 8 of the Local Government Act 1894 provides that parish and town
councils cannot give funding to ecclesiastical charities. There is a competing
provision in section 137 (3) of the Local Government Act 1972 that allows
parish and town councils to give funding to charitable bodies. Awareness that
the law is unclear has discouraged many parish councils from providing
funding for churches, in case they attract a legal challenge. Councils
concerned over the legality of proposed donations should take legal advice.

The 2017 Taylor Review, ‘Sustainability of English Churches and Cathedrals’,
addresses this issue:

Evidence submitted to the Review suggested that there is
considerable confusion as to whether the 1972 Act supersedes the
Local Government Act 1894, and that the 1894 Act is still perceived as
a barrier, preventing investment in church buildings by local
authorities.

Clarification on this point should be given, whether by repealing
section 8 of the 1894 Act, or by the issue of guidance. This should
clarify that local authorities can invest in church buildings in
accordance with Section 137 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Additionally, repeal or the issue of guidance should clarify that
certain parish councils are also able to fund church buildings using
powers contained in the Localism Act 2011«

Two detailed accounts of the issues can also be found on the Law and
Religion blog, ane from March 2017 and one from June 2020.

% Taylor Review, Sustainability of English Churches and Cathedrals, 2017, pp31-32

72

26 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/Vict/56-57/73/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/669667/Taylor_Review_Final.pdf
http://www.lawandreligionuk.com/2017/03/07/may-a-parish-council-grant-aid-a-place-of-worship/
https://www.lawandreligionuk.com/2020/06/02/may-a-parish-or-town-council-grant-aid-a-place-of-worship-yet-further-thoughts/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/669667/Taylor_Review_Final.pdf

6.2

6.3

Parish and town councils: recent issues

Public participation

In England, local electors do not have a right to speak at a meeting of a
parish council, though a council may choose to give them the opportunity to
do so. Welsh community councils must “give members of the public in
attendance a reasonable opportunity to make representations about any
business to be transacted at the meeting”.*> Welsh community councils must
also produce an annual report, a training plan for their councillors and staff,
and they must publish certain information electronically.®®

A parish meeting is convened “for the purpose of discussing parish affairs”,?’
implying that any electors in attendance may speak. All local electors in
attendance have the right to vote on matters raised within a parish meeting.

Online meetings

The legislation regarding parish and town councils meeting virtually / online
is the same as that covering principal councils. From 4 April 2020 to 6 May
2021, online meetings were permitted. The relevant regulations lapsed as of 7
May 2021. The Coronavirus Act 2020 prevents further regulations permitting
online meetings from applying after 7 May 2021. This means that primary
legislation would now be required to permit online meetings in England.

The Local Government Act 1972 provides that any councillor who fails to
attend a meeting for six months is automatically disqualified from his or her
seat, unless the council has previously passed a dispensation waiving this
rule.*® Councillors who attended online meetings during the Covid-19
pandemic are regarded as being in attendance, and would therefore not be
caught by this provision.* However, councillors who refused, or were unable,
to attend online meetings for a period of over six months could be
disqualified.

All local authorities in Scotland and Wales are permitted to hold online
meetings, via devolved legislation.®°

% See the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021, s48.

%6 See the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021, s52; s67; Local Government (Democracy)
(Wales) Act 2013, s55

%7 Local Government Act 1972, section 9(1).

8 Local Government Act 1972, s85 (1)

% See the Qca

020, regulotlons

60 See section 47 ofthe Lmﬂﬁmmmﬁnmndjleﬂmns_mmlmm section 43 of the Local
Government in Scotland Act 2003

27 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2013/4/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2013/4/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/392
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/392
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asp/2003/1/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asp/2003/1/contents

6.4

6.5

Parish and town councils: recent issues

The Local Government Ombudsman and
parish and town councils

Parish and town councils in England do not fall within the remit of the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman. However, when parish and town
councils are carrying out functions on behalf of county, district or unitary

authorities, it may be possible to complain to the Ombudsman.

In March 2015, the Government issued a consultation on extending the remit
of the Local Government Ombudsman to certain parish and town councils.®
The consultation proposed to bring ‘larger parish councils’ within the
Ombudsman’s remit. It invited views on whether this should be done, and on
how ‘larger parish councils’ should be defined: this might be via a population
threshold, or via a threshold related to the size of the parish council’s
precept. The consultation suggested a population threshold of 35,000,
and/or a precept of £1 million, might be used. A council which came under the
Ombudsman’s remit would remain under its remit until the next census data is
published.

The consultation closed on 30 June 2015, but no Government response to it
has been published.

The Government published a draft Public Service Ombudsman Bill in
December 2016, which set out its plans to introduce a new Public Service
Ombudsman. The draft Bill would have extended the jurisdiction of the Public
Service Ombudsman to all parish and town councils.® That Bill has not been
introduced to Parliament.

The remit of the Public Service Ombudsman in Wales covers community
councils in Wales, including matters relating to councillor conduct.

Council tax support and precept levels

Local council tax support schemes replaced council tax benefit from 1 April
2013. The funding provided for council tax benefit was passed to local
authorities. A side-effect of the ending of council tax benefit was a reduction
in the council tax base. The council tax base is the taxable capacity of a given
area, normally expressed in terms of Band D properties. Council tax benefit
was paid via a cash payment into the individual recipient’s account.
Therefore, if a resident was in receipt of council tax benefit, this did not
change the council tax base.

2015
%2 See Draft Public Service Ombudsman Bill, December 2016.

74

28 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.lgo.org.uk/make-a-complaint/fact-sheets/other-topics/parish-councils
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/draft-public-service-ombudsman-bill
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/extending-the-remit-of-the-local-government-ombudsman-to-larger-parish-and-town-councils
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/draft-public-service-ombudsman-bill

6.6

Parish and town councils: recent issues

Since 2013-14, the council tax base has reflected the actual amounts paid by
residents who pay less council tax as a result of local support schemes. As a
result, the council tax base decreased in most areas (though not in all: this
depends on local circumstances). Where it has decreased, the same level of
parish council precept produces less revenue, from the same number of
properties, than it did prior to 2013-14.

A DCLG consultation in August 2012 stated that the Government was minded
to prevent this situation, by protecting the calculation of the precept from the
changes in the council tax base caused by localisation. This would mean the
amount of precept collected would be unaffected.® This was supported by a
large majority of responses to the consultation.® However, the Government
response to the consultation, published in November 2012, reversed this
position.® Hence, where the council tax base is reduced, parish and town
councils now receive less money from the precept than previously.®®

The funding for council tax support schemes provided to billing authorities for
2013-14 included a sum in respect of the funding that would be lost to parish
councils as a result of this decision. However, the Government did not oblige
billing authorities to pass this sum on to parish and town councils.®

From 2014-15, funding for council tax support schemes - and the sums
intended for parish and town councils - has been rolled into general local
authority grant funding. It is therefore not possible to identify a specific
amount which is intended for use for council tax support schemes.
Nevertheless, the issue continued to attract controversy. The National
Association of Local Councils (NALC) claimed that £40 million of the 2014-15
local government finance settlement was earmarked for parish and town
councils, but only £31 million was passed to them by billing authorities.®®

Parish councils and business rates

In 2014, a formal proposal was made to permit a share of business rates to be
directed to parish and town councils. This was made by Sevenoaks Town
Council, under the Sustainable Communities Act procedure. Sevenoaks Town
Council claimed to have had support from over 400 organisations. The idea
recalls the pre-1990 rating system (see section 3 above), under which parish

Q_ul'.h_QI’_LtLQS August 2012, p.12
5 Ibid., p. 7

5 DCLG, lisi . . ndi i
gmhgmm_GQALemmenLLespgnse_to_the_oumme_Qchnsulmp_n November 2012, p.6

66 See the Local Au

gmhemmﬁm&mmenmmnseiﬂhemmme&tcen&uﬂmm November 2012, p. 16
% See NALC, “Parishes short-changed by £9 million”, 24 October 2014.

75

29 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/15326/Annex_A_Council_tax_base_consultation_response_-_07_Novt_-_v3__4_.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/15326/Annex_A_Council_tax_base_consultation_response_-_07_Novt_-_v3__4_.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/15326/Annex_A_Council_tax_base_consultation_response_-_07_Novt_-_v3__4_.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/15326/Annex_A_Council_tax_base_consultation_response_-_07_Novt_-_v3__4_.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/15326/Annex_A_Council_tax_base_consultation_response_-_07_Novt_-_v3__4_.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/15326/Annex_A_Council_tax_base_consultation_response_-_07_Novt_-_v3__4_.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2914/pdfs/uksi_20122914_en.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/15326/Annex_A_Council_tax_base_consultation_response_-_07_Novt_-_v3__4_.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/15326/Annex_A_Council_tax_base_consultation_response_-_07_Novt_-_v3__4_.pdf
http://www.nalc.gov.uk/About_NALC/NALCMediaRelease24October2014.aspx

6.7

6.8

Parish and town councils: recent issues

and town council precepts applied to both domestic and non-domestic rates.
The proposal was rejected by the Government.®®

Parish councils and neighbourhood planning

The Localism Act 2011 permits parish and town councils to develop a
‘neighbourhood plan’. Neighbourhood plans must be in broad conformity with
the local structure plan. A neighbourhood plan may be developed in
consultation with the community, and it must then be subjected to an
examination in public. It is then subject to a local referendum, and if a ‘yes’
vote is obtained, it will become the land-use plan for the parish area.
Neighbourhood plans may also be developed by neighbourhood forums
where no parish council exists. Further information is available in the Library

briefing paper Neighbourhood planning.

In addition, in areas where there is a neighbourhood development plan in
place, the parish council will be able to receive 25% of the revenues from any
Community Infrastructure Levy arising from the development that they have
chosen to accept.” Where no parish or town council exists, the guidance
states that:

Communities without a parish or town council will still benefit from
this incentive, with the local planning authority retaining it and
spending it in accordance with the wishes of the community.”

The decision to establish a Community Infrastructure Levy is taken by the
principal council, not the parish council. Further details are available in the

Library briefing paper Community infrastructure levy.
Cheques

Until 2014, parish councils were required to make all payments by cheques
signed by two councillors. This requirement dated from section 150 (5) of the

Local Government Act 1972. The Legislative Reform (Payments by Parish
Councils, Community Councils and Charter Trustees) Order 2014 (S| 2014-580)

removed this requirement for both England and Wales.”

% Ruth Keeling, “Parish council business rates grab rejected”, Local Government Chronicle, 26 June
2013

" See the Community Infrastructure L evy (Amendment) Regulations 2013 (SI 2013/982)

7 DCLG, Communities to receive cash boost for choosing development, 10 January 2013

7 See the initial consultation at DCLG, Payments by parish and community councils and charter
trustees, 2012; and a written statement announcing the decision at HCDeb 10 Sep 2013 c43WS

76

30 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents
http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/research/briefing-papers/SN05838/neighbourhood-planning
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/sn03890/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents
file://hpap03f/DIS/homedrives/sandfordm/The%20Legislative%20Reform%20(Payments%20by%20Parish%20Councils,%20Community%20Councils%20and%20Charter%20Trustees)%20Order%202014
file://hpap03f/DIS/homedrives/sandfordm/The%20Legislative%20Reform%20(Payments%20by%20Parish%20Councils,%20Community%20Councils%20and%20Charter%20Trustees)%20Order%202014
http://www.lgcplus.com/briefings/corporate-core/finance/parish-council-business-rate-grab-rejected/5060288.article
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/982/made
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/communities-to-receive-cash-boost-for-choosing-development
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/8349/2181650.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/8349/2181650.pdf
http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201314/cmhansrd/cm130910/wmstext/130910m0001.htm#13091033000008

6.9

Parish and town councils: recent issues

Electronic agendas

In January 2015, the Government made a Legislative Reform Order covering
England, permitting parish and town councillors to receive agendas
electronically if they so choose.” Prior to this, the Local Government Act 1972
required council meeting agendas to be supplied to councillors in paper
form.™

" See the Local Government (Electronic Communications) (England) Order 2015 (SI 2015/5)

™ Ibid.

77

31 Commons Library Research Briefing, 15 September 2021


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/5/contents/made

The House of Commons Library is a research and
information service based in the UK Parliament.

Our impartial analysis, statistical research and
resources help MPs and their staff scrutinise
legislation, develop policy, and support constituents.

Our published material is available to everyone
on commonslibrary.parliament.uk.

Get our latest research delivered straight to your inbox.
Subscribe at commonslibrary.parliament.uk/subscribe
or scan the code below:

Ob0
ey
e

£
Gifieeos

[7 commonslibrary.parliament.uk

Y @commonslibrary

/8



APPENDIX 7.
Newbury Town Council

Public Report
To: Council Date of meeting: 30 January 2023.
Agenda item No. 12: 2023/24 Budget and Precept

Decision Required:

To note that the Policy & Resources Committee resolved on 16 January to adopt a
budget for 2023/24, and recommends that the Council sets an overall budget
expenditure of £2,280,724

To resolve to adopt the budget for Financial Year 2023/2024 and raise a precept of
£1,575,224 for the year

To resolve that a leaflet explaining to the public how the precept is to be used during
2023/24 is produced, with that leaflet to be distributed to each household in Newbury
and published on the Council’s website.

Budget Highlights
The full figures for the proposed budget for 2023-24 are shown on the attached table.

The table details the budget as approved last year, with actual outturn, the budget for
this year with projected outturns and the proposed expenditures for next year and the
sources of funds for this expenditure.

In summary, the “bottom lines” are as follows:

Year Total

Expenditure

NTC income | Precept Reserves | CIL/S106 PWLB
21-22 11,306,014 247,401 1,135,249 |-105,331 | 28,695 0
22-231 | 1,727,955 250,996 1,180,623 | 246,336 | 50,000 0
23-24 | 2,280,724 302,345 1,272,879 | 330,161 75,339 300,000

The draft budget continues the work of the Council in delivering the 4 key elements of
the Council’s Strategy 2019-2024:

1. Help make Newbury a unique, welcoming, safe and well cared for Town
2 Foster a real sense of community

3. Take actions to address the climate emergency

4 Focused support for youth, the elderly, minorities and the vulnerable.

! Projected outturn 79



The Main features of the budget are as follows:

Salaries: A proposed increase of 9.5% which incorporates the Staff structure review, as
approved by the Staff Subcommittee.

Grounds Maintenance Contract: the draft budget provides for our new grounds
maintenance contract, operative from 7 January 2023. The annual increase is 12%
approx. but given current inflation rates, the new contract represents real value for
money for the Council.

The Community Café in Victoria Park: The draft budget also proposes funds for the
construction of the proposed community Café in Victoria Park. Planning permission has
been obtained and discharge of all planning conditions approved. We have been out to
tender and our QS is negotiating a final price with three contractors. We have also
agreed the operator for the new café, and they will be involved in the design, layout
and fitout of the café. The planned opening date is late 2023. The planned expenditure
for the coming year is £630,000, funded from reserves (£269,661), CIL (£60,339) and a
loan of £300,000.

Precept requirement
The budget above proposes an overall expenditure for 2023-24 of £2,280,724.

Of this total, £705,00 is for capital/ one-off projects, which will be funded from
reserves (£330,161), CIL/ Section 106 (£75,339) and a loan of £300,000. The remaining
revenue expenditure is to be funded from Town Council income from charges and
services (£302,345) and the Council Tax precept requirement of £1,272,879.

The precept represents an increase of £92,256 on last year’s (7.8% increase)
Band D payment

The precept will be levied on the Newbury Council Tax base, which now stands at
£13,445.70. This is an increase of £180.76 on last year 13,264.94 (1.36%).

The Band D Council tax payment for the Town Council precept will be £94.66 per
household, an increase of £5.66 on last year (6.4%).

Hugh Peacocke

CEO and RFO 21 January 2023.

80



52 NEWBURY

itz Town Council

-

| J ’,: Strategy 2019-2024 - Year 4 update

= and

Budget 2023/24

B -
e Full Council, 30" January 2023, v1

-~ {ull
% Making Newbury a town we can all be proud of



-

L
iy
il

s

NEWBURY - Qur Mission — What drives us?

ERENENE]
[t

Making Newbury
a town we can all be proud of

Gek it fresh, & 7
- qet it local...

;itNEWBURY 7.

gl Town Council #

Newbury Town Council Budget 2023/24 — Full Council, 30t January 2023, v1



5£;<\
r=
Hal ¥l
|
H AT T T
| |
LT
I

1
T IR TR TRT T

7T
I
T

T

NEWBURY

Town Council

2022-23: Continued delivery in most areas

* NTC has successfully delivered several key objectives in Year 3:

Significant progress on proposed new Community Café and public toilets for Victoria Park

* Tender process entering final stages — complicated and delayed due to Covid aftermath, construction bottleneck and inflation. Funding agreed

Continued our youth work partnerships

* Successful ongoing partnership with Berkshire Youth for outreach youth work in Newbury

* Ongoing grants for the Community Youth Project in the Nightingales and the Riverside Centre in Clay Hill
Significant steps on sustainability:

* Completed several energy saving projects in the Town Hall and our other buildings

* Our cumulative carbon footprint reduction is one year ahead of schedule for an average of 7 tonnes p.a and carbon neutrality by 2030
* Held our 6t climate conferences and awarded further Climate Grants incl £10K to Loose Ends & Cricket Club for PV and 3.8 tonnes CO2 offset

Completed a successful tender process and appointed John O’Connor as our new Grounds Maintenance partner
* Improving sustainability and biodiversity included at the heart of the contract
Continued a much needed programme of maintenance to ensure safety of our playgrounds, buildings and our trees
* Major upgrade of the playground in Fifth Road, and the addition of play equipment for the disabled in Victoria Park
Completed consultations on future improvements to Hutton Close and Greenham House Gardens
Started work on our Neighbourhood Development Plan, with stage 1 consultation almost completed
Significant consultation / planning responses on:
* LRIE (incl NCFG), Sandleford, the Local Plan, Newbury Town Centre Masterplan 2036, redevelopment of the Kennet Centre
Maintained Green Flag for Victoria Park, entered new tennis partnership, and introduced Crazy Golf

* NTC has successfully maintained core services:

Looked after our parks and playgrounds despite deteriorating service from previous grounds maintenance contractor
Charter market continues to have healthy number of stalls

Allotments remain at 100% capacity

Awarded grants to local organisations who are supporting the vulnerable in Newbury

Ongoing support for Citizens Advice, town centre CCTV, and Christmas Lights

Mayoral support for and appreciation of our residents, businesses and minority communities

Newbury Town Council Budget 2023/24 — Full Council, 30t January 2023, v1



T
J.L I

7T
I

| |
ik

H AT T T
n
I

B

I I

51 Rma

TNEVWEUR% 2023-24: Key strategic projects

Open the new Community Café and public toilets in Victoria Park, by the end of 2023
* Assuming we can successfully complete the tender process and appoint a contractor who will deliver within our agreed budget.
* |f we cannot meet our agreed budget, then we will pause the project until the market situation improves and we can tender again.

Continue our support of youth work in Newbury with ongoing funding for:
e Partnership with Berkshire Youth for outreach youth work, youth work at both the CYP in the Nightingales and the Riverside Centre in Clay Hill

Specific actions to address the climate emergency:
* Reduce our net carbon by > 7t to deliver cumulative reduction of > 35t since 2019/20, one year ahead of schedule for net neutral by 2030
e Ensure Victoria Park Community Café build is rated > BREEAM Very Good, and begin measurement of carbon emissions once operational
* Award further Carbon Grants to help local organisations in NewburK reduce their carbon footprint, and deliver local offset for NTC
* Begin recommended actions to manage the water courses for which we are responsible

Parks and Playgrounds:
e Start work on the improvements to the public open space at Wash Common & Hutton Close, based on the completed public consultations
e Take over ownership of Greenham House Gardens and be§in work to upgrade it based on the completed public consultation
* Retain Green Flag for Victoria Park and secure Green Flag for City Rec for the first time

Seek funding for a major upgrade to the Wharf public toilets
* Work with WBC and others to secure funding for this, including disabled changing facility with specialist hoist, and a shower

Continue partnership to support inclusivity with our minorities

Continue work on our Neighbourhood Development Plan:
* to enable the people of Newbury to have real influence in guiding future development in a sensitive and sustainable way

Provide a strong lobbying voice for Newbury residents, in particular into:
* Newbury Town Centre Masterplan 2036, including permanent pedestrianisation of the Market Place
* London Road Industrial Estate development plans, including the Faraday Road Football Ground
e Continue to oppose any plans for redevelopment of the Kennet Centre that are out scale with the historic town centre

Begin work to develop and agree a 20-year strategy for the role of NTC and investment in our public buildings

Newbury Town Council Budget 2023/24 — Full Council, 30t January 2023, v1



_w,
)

T Making Newbury a town we can all be proud of
i%& Our
L Goals

t=t

IQTYTIT

[H=
it

NewBURY - Qur Goals — Where are we heading?

Town Council

1. Help make Newbury a unique, welcoming, safe and well cared for town

A. Provide outstanding parks, playgrounds and public spaces.
*  Upgrade our parks in the Nightingales, Hutton Close, Wash Common & Greenham House Gardens. Win Green Flag for City Rec
Run vibrant markets
Run thriving allotments
Provide well-kept and peaceful cemeteries
Ensure our public and historic buildings are properly cared for and well-used
Help deliver a well-presented town with high quality public amenities that support well-being, safety and visitors
Provide a strong voice for Newbury by lobbying and working with WBC, Newbury BID, and others
*  Produce Neighbourhood Development Plan

2. Foster a real sense of community
A. Inspiring Civic events and Mayoral calendar
B. Enjoyable and inclusive community events
C. Celebrate and recognise individual and community achievements
D. Encourage and support contributions to our public and community life
E. Celebrate and encourage appreciation of public art and Newbury’s heritage

GmMmMoOOm

G8

3. Take actions to address the climate emergency
A. Ensure the activities of the Town Council are carbon neutral by 2030 or before
B. Actively encourage and support actions that will make Newbury as a whole more environmentally sustainable

4. Provide focused support for young people, the elderly, minorities and the vulnerable
A. Provide funding to organisations which support youth work and support to other vulnerable people in Newbury
B. Support initiatives to make Newbury a more inclusive town
C. Work with local organisations which support the homeless in Newbury

Newbury Town Council Budget 2023/24 — Full Council, 30t January 2023, v1



;“'% Making Newbury a town we can all be proud of - °

ATy T Ty

el

NEWBLRY - Summary of Key Strategic Actions 2019-2024 Planned
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Nightingales, Greenham House Gdn

Green Flag City Rec, Hutton Close,
S,
Wash Common phase 1

Lobby and Influence WBC: LRIE including NCFG, Newbury Town Centre Masterplan, Local Plan. Produce Neighbourhood Development Plan >

2. FOSTER A REAL SENSE OF COMMUNITY

iStage and support inclusive community events: Newbury in Bloom, Civic Awards, Mayor’s Tea Party, Famlly Fun Day, Remembrance Sunday, etc

NV

Encourage local democracy and appreciation of Newbury s heritage

3. SPECIFIC ACTIONS TO ADDRESS THE CLIMATE EMERGENCY

* Creduction > 7 tonnes
* Climate conference 7

* Carbon Grants

* Manage water courses

Lobby WBC on building standards, sustainable transport plan, recycling, flooding, Sandleford, Pedestrianisation, etc >

C reduction = 7 tonnes
Climate conference 8
Carbon Grants
Manage water courses

4. FOCUSSED SUPPORT FOR YOUNG PEOPLE, THE ELDERLY, MINORITIES & THE VULNERABLE

- reach with Berkshire Youth + Riverside & CYP

Additional targeted grants to support young people, the elderly, minorities & the vulnerable > |
T T T




ol

i

I i
I} Il

n

TI I TT

NEWBUR

Town Council

Inflation — CPI last 5 years and forecast next 2 years

TRADING TRADING

Calendar News Markets~ Indicators ~ Countrie Calendar News Markets- Indicators - Countrie

United Kingdom Inflation Rate United Kingdom Inflation Rate

Summary Calendar Forecast Stats Alerts Download ~ Summary Calendar Forecast Stats Alerts Download ~
& 1Y 5Y 10Y 25Y MAX .hChart >3 Compare & Export APl [dEmbed & 1Y 5Y 10Y 25Y MAX .Chart 33 Compare & Export APl [dEmbed
20 14
12
15 —
10
3 10 8
5 4
1 0,
) Estimate 6% 2023 |
0
5
2018 2020 2022 2024 Jan 2022 Jul 2022 Jan 2023 Jul 2023 Jan 2024
Calendar GMT Reference Actual Previous Consensus TEForecast Calendar GMT Reference Actual Previous Consensus TEForecast
2022-11-16 07:00 AM Oct 11.1% 10.1% 10.7% 11% 2022-11-16 07:00 AM Oct 11.1% 10.1% 10.7% 11%
2022-12-14 07:00 AM Nov 10.7% 11.1% 10.9% 11% 2022-12-14 07:00 AM Nov 10.7% 11.1% 10.9% 11%
2023-01-18 07:00 AM Dec 10.7% 11.5% 2023-01-18 07:00 AM Dec 10.7% 11.5%
+ +

Newbury Town Council Budget 2023/24 — Full Council, 30t January 2023, v1



'

Tyl
NewBURY - Budget — Topline vs CPI

3

T

=Dy

HHEH

=

=
H

CPI: Status and predictions:
* to Dec 2022 = +10.5% (ONS)
* prediction for Q4 2023 = +5.0% (BoE)
* prediction for Q4 2024 = 1.5% (BoE)

Band D Precept vs Total Precept vs CPI - Budget vP&R

141%

s Band D * NTC assumption for 2023 = 6.0%
* CPlincrease 2023-24 vs 2019-20 = 20.1%
131% =@=Total Precept
=0=_P]|

121%

111%

Budget total precept = +7.8%
* 2023-24=£1.273 mio vs £1.181 mio

AR

101%

Tax base up 1.4% to 13,446

Band D up by 6.4% to £94.67 p.a.
* Increase of £5.66 p.a. or 11 pence per week
* Significantly below inflation
* Band D increase 2023-4 vs 2019-20 is below
CPI rise over same period

91%

Percentage changes, with 2010/11 set at 100%

81%

10-11 11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24

Newbury Town Council Budget 2023/24 — Full Council, 30t January 2023, v1



T
J"

I
as
I

=a=nzn=

T I I 1L

Town Council

NEWSURY - Budget 2023-24 vs 2022-23 — lllustrative Summary

lllustrative Change in Precept: 2023-24 vs 2022-23

182,247

161,482

302,345

244,825
Net only £13.5K

increase due to
savings in other
areas: pitches,

floral displays &
WBC admin

Revenue  Salaries & staff New Grounds  Utiliities & Supporting our Other Key reductions Other Savings Income Precept
budget structure Maintenance Rates key straegy increases & one-offs 2023/24 2023/24
2022/23 contract goals

* Significant increase in staff costs

* National pay awards, NI & pension, Covid levy
@ * New structure slight increase offset by savings

* New grounds maintenance contract

e Autonomy vs previous. Local depot
@ e Partnership, incl joint branding of vehicles

e Utilities & rates
* Electricity actually lower due to climate action

* Supporting our key strategic goals
* See further details

e Significant increase in income

* Market
@ * Tennis

* Allotments

* Cemetery

* Resulting Precept
@  Budget VP&R = + 7.8% total precept
* For Band D +6.4%, below inflation

Newbury Town Council Budget 2023/24 — Full Council, 30t January 2023, v1



jr

o

eifie
I
I

)
¥

_ﬁ\

1

-

Jr1T
L1 I N

T I 1
:’T.Tl !”

-

Il

TH

H

|3

T
I

H

NEWBLRY - Supporting our key strategy goals

10

Supporting our Strategic Goals 2023-24

Revenue | Reserves | CIL/PWLB Total Commentary
1 |Community Café in Victoria Park 0 245,000 | 385,000 | 630,000
2 |Upgrading Playgrounds, focus on Nightingales 40,000 10,000 50,000
3 [Wash Common public space upgrade stage 1 - 18,400 18,400
4 |Hutton Close upgrade - 15,000 15,000 Section 1 of our strategy:
5 |Contribution towards Newbury Christmas lights 12,000 12,000 Help make Newbury a unique, welcoming, safe and
6 |Newbury In Bloom 4,500 4,500 well cared for town
7 [Support for friends Groups, Community, groups, etc 3,000 3,000
8 |Defibrulators 2,500 2,500
9 |Green Flag - City Rec 700 700
8 10 |Berkshire Youth: outreach youth work 25,000 25,000
11 |Grant Sub Committee 24,500 24,500
12 |CAB Grant 20,000 20,000 Section 4 of our strategy:
13 |Diversity & Inclusivity 3,000 3,000 Provide focused support for young people, the elderly,
14 |Greenham Community Youth 2,500 2,500 minorities and the vulnerable
15 |Riverside Centre 2,500 2,500
16 |Volunteer Centre 500 500
17 |Grants for Climate Change Proj 10,000 10,000
18 |Additional solar panels Town Hall 5,000 5,000
19 [Water courses 10,000 10,000 Section 3 of our strategy:
20 |Energy Conservation Projects 4,000 4,000 Take actions to address the climate emergency
21 |Biodiversity Survey 1,000 1,000
22 |Greenham & Crookham Common 500 500
Total 171,200 | 288,400 | 385,000 | 844,600
Revenue increase vs 2022-23 78,050

Newbury Town Council Budget 2023/24 — Full Council, 30t January 2023, v1



s

NEWBURY - Our Mission

Newbury Town Council Budget 2023/24 — Full Council, 30t January 2023, v1



c6

* NTC Budget 2023723

16:41 |Draft 5,05.01.2023

Code |De{income/exp

2122 '

4000 |[Salaries/NI/PAYE

Budget  |Actual

512,624

7,000

-512,624

8,000

ol|o|o

146,368

3,000

0

18,000

0

28,380

800

o 457,377

4010  |Misc Staff Expenses 2575 4,815
4045 |Salary Reallocation ~ -420,066 -457,377
verhead Expenditure 257 4,815

1076 |Precept Received ~ 1,135,249] 1,135,249
1090 |Interest Received 2,500 906
1091 |Shares/Dividend Income I 0 2
1120 |Grants & Donations Received (BRSNS 100
1905 |[CILincome received 0 28,695
1990 |Miscellaneous Income L= 40
R —

4045  [Salary Reallocation e zs,ﬁi 27,935
4050 |Bank Charges 2,0 2,573
4055 |Election Expenses 6,50 4,826
4425 Repairs and Maintenance 0 2,700
3 ] L e B 38,034

110 Net Income over Expenditure ~1,103,227| 1,126,958

4045  |Salary Reallocation 36695 40,256
4105 |Members' travel & subsistence - 7! 0
4110  |Bus Shelter Advertising 800 218
4120 |Precept Leaflet 1,200 1,099
4125  |P&R Projects Fund 5,000 23
a = E | e e ! 44,445 41,59

1,000

Actual YTD Projected
265,966 480,000
3,889 5,000
-265,966 -480,000
3,889 5,000
1,180,623 1,180,623
4,414 7,000
4 10
0 0
9,357 20,000
0 0
1,194,398 1,207,633
57,715 103,200
1,472 2,400
0 0
0 0
59,187 105,600
1,135,211 1,102,033
8,511 16,000
0 400
0 0
0 1,400
0 0
8,511 17,800

2,000




€6

10,000

25,000

12,000

2,500

500

24,500

20,000

0

0

2,500

0

2,500

500

3,000

0

3,000

500

6,000

2,000

8,000

3,000

1,800

1,500

30,000

18,000

4,800

5,000

2,000

1,500

1,200

]

1600 |Sponsarshi 0 900
ytal'ln — 0 900
4150 |Grants for Climate Change Proj | 10,000 4,495
4155 | Berkshire Youth; Youth Worker 25,000 25,000
4160  |Contribution to BID Xmas light 12,000 12,000
4165 |Greenham Community Youth = 2,500 2,500
4170 |Volunteer Centre r- 50@4_ 500
4180 |Grant Sub Committee i 24,500 29,306
4185 |CAB Grant 20,000 20,000
4190 |CCTV ) 12,000
4205 |WBC - contribution to library 10,000 10,000
4210 |Defibs 4,000 3,266
4211 |Riverside Centre 2,500 0
4212 |Greenham & Crookham Common 500 500
4213 |Diversity & Inclusivity je== 0| 0
4214  |Cicket Club contribution - 0 0
4215 |Support for friends Groups, Community, groups, etc [E
verhead : 123500 119,567
1990 |Miscellaneous Income 100 118
I : 100 118
4200 |Visitor Information Centre - 1,500 0
4220  |Training and Development 5,000 6,449
4225  |Advertising Recruitment 1,0@ 2,060
4230 |Telephone 5,65 7,303
4235 |Postage 1,500 1,929
4240  |Printing/Stationery 1,500 1,771
4245 | Office Equipment 2,000 860
4250 |IT | 22,0F(ﬂ 20,148
4255  |Professional Fees 15,000 10,833
4260 |Audit 3,800 3,395
4265  |Subscriptions 4,400 4,510
4270  |Photocopier Charges 2,000 1,640
4275  |Advertising General 1,200 1,016
4280 |Recycling Costs 900 974
4285 |GM contract admin fee (WBC) 2,700 2,700
4290  |Capital exp computers etc 6,000 2,069
4420 |Insurance 13,000 12,304
¥ Tllies EsSEE 89,150 79,961

0

0 0

0 0

0 10,000
12,500 25,000
12,000 12,000
0 2,500

0 500
10,440 20,500
20,000 20,000
0 0

0 0
1,070 2,500
0 2,500

0 500
2,500 2,500
0 5,000
58,510 103,500
0 0

0 0

0 500
1,645 4,000
1,797 4,000
4,315 7,000
1,612 2,500
954 1,500
117 1,500
20,267 25,000
11,796 17,000
480 5,000
4,259 4,800
1,018 1,500
660 1,300
578 1,100

0 2,800

0 2,000
11,226 13,000
60,724 94,500

14,000




76

Suite Lease Income

=

36,000

1,500

10,000

0

33,034

o|o|o|o

5,000

11,430

500

10,000

4,000

24,000

16,500

1,200

1,200

0

2,500

1270 I 4 13,236
1275 |[Solar Panel Income - 400 0
1280 |Chamber Hire 6,000 6,096
1285 |Projector Hire B ~ 0 60
Total Income 38400 19,392
4045  [Salary Reallocation 47,325 48,979
T L ]
4255  |Professional Fees a0, 0
4310 |Reconnect Drinking Fountain - 1,850 0
4315 |Topographical Survey 11,650 0
4320 |Town Hall Refurb 10,000 0
Town Hall Maintenance Fund i
4345  |Additional solar panels Town Hall 1,500 0
4405  |Rates 11,094 11,557
4410 |Water 1,000 452
4415  |Energy Supplies 10,300 8,712
4416 |Energy Conservation Projects w 5,486
4425  |Repairs and Maintenance 74,000 23,824
4430 |Maint. Contracts 14,588 16,396
4440  |Fire Extinguishers = 1,50 667
4445  |Security W 993
4580 |PPE ) 49
ver penditure X 117,115
1280 |Chamber Hire = 910
3 3 910
4045  |Salary Reallocation LT 129 3,950
4340 | Weddings expenditure ~ 1,000 1,129
Dverhe tuwre ] | a429 5,079

8,788

19,137 31,000
0 500
4,765 9,000
24 0
23,926 40,500
18,884 34,000
0 2,000

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 1,870
10,785 10,785
151 500
4,865 7,500
3,945 4,000
12,426 18,500
10,856 15,900
500 1,250
463 1,600

0 0
62,875 97,905
402 1,000
402 1,000
5,585 10,000
2,609 3,000
8,194 13,000

1,000




G6

5,253

1,500

950

700

10,000

9,000

1,200

500

250

2,000

50,000

18,015

300

1,000

9,200

1,600

1,000

4,500

70,000

2,860

1300 |Cemetery Income o 300
' | - 300

4045 |Salary Reallocation 3,147
4355 |NRC Composting toilet maintenance —— 1,347
4405  |Rates e 488
4415  |Energy Supplies 400 2,851
4416 |Energy Conservation Projects | 134
4425  |Repairs and Maintenance = 1,482
4430 |Maint. Contracts | 12,250 11,093
4435 |Maint. Contracts Unscheduled . ,200 1,125
4436 |Headstone Survey ] 2, 0
4440  |Fire Extinguishers I =___o¢ 59
4515  |Tree Surveys & Works 800 0
4540 |NRC Composting Toilet (25%) 0
4545  |Redecoration of Chapel 1,2 0
' N 33,050 21,726

1300 |Cemetery Income = 68,691
! 68,691

4045 |Salary Reallocation 21,1 22,899
4250 |IT | al, 1,792
4265  |Subscriptions I L] 150
4400 |Rent Payable 1,000/ 1,000
4405 |Rates B 280 1,410
4410 |Water 3, 724
4415 |Energy Supplies 962
4416 |Energy Conservation Projects 1,8 1,860
4425 |Repairs and Maintenance S 8,459
4430 |Maint. Contracts SRI6315| 60,120
4435 |Maint. Contracts Unscheduled 2, 0
4440 |Fire Extinguishers : 227
4515  |Tree Surveys & Works . 2,885 680
ac T  111,8 100,283

700

240 500
240 500
3,990 7,000
768 1,250
886 886
209 600

0 0
8,833 12,000
6,741 9,600
1,450 2,000
1,875 2,000
63 225

800 1,850

0 0

0 0
25,615 37,411
32,188 45,000
32,188 45,000
8,245 15,000
0 800

260 260

0 1,000
8,982 8,982
1,044 1,500
274 1,000

0 0
1,156 4,000
36,458 67,500
0 2,860

126 700

0 2,420
56,545 106,022

3,000




Market Income

1320 50,826/
1990 |Miscellaneous Income 200{

= 51,026}
4045  |Salary Reallocation 24,362
4265  |Subscriptions I 369 |
4275  |Advertising General 'IT_ 1,328}
4360 |Market Management 14,172 |
4405  |Rates 5,783
4415  |Energy Supplies 621}
4425  |Repairs and Maintenance

verhead F iture

4045

47,445

Salary Reallocation

4,156

4425

Repairs and Maintenance

330|

Sinking Fund

ol

Salary Reallocation

8] 456

4415  |Energy Supplies 7, 7,666 |
4425  |Repairs and Maintenance | 13,000 15,403 |
Street Lighting Upgrade Il 2,530 830/

1 Expendity | 26,551 28,055/

4045 |Salary Reallocation |
4415  |Energy Supplies |
4425

Repairs and Maintenance

=
U EX] '-ll‘il €

50,000

11,801

500

1,500

17,500

6,200

810}

1,200

1,000

1,647

1,500

2,000

4,486

2,394

3,616

3,840

4,807

8,000

747

12,000

11,564

7,000

1,647

850

1,000




L6

Clear Channel (INC)
S

5451

60,000

400

11,000

0

2,000

0

11iF
|

14,362

336

18,429

1,380

650

0

3,000

1,581

16,331

5,000

34,000

2,500

4,000

2,637

0

36,627

20,745

37,500)

1605 [ 47,797
[Total i T R T | 47,797
4045 |Salary Reallocatio 4,165]
4111  |Bus Shelter Provision & Maint 47,797
4415  |Energy Supplies — 0
4425  |Repairs and Maintenance 2,376
4435  |Maint. Contracts Unscheduled 500 0
4460 | Grit Bins 0
4860 |Move of Bus Stop _ 0
|Overhead ure =| 54,338
330 Net Income over Expenditure -6,541
1355  [Income - Pitches | 2,307
Totalincome. |
4861 |football pitch management . 0
_Ipirect Expenditure B B 0
335 Wash Common Upgrade- Phase 1 - 0
4045 |Salary Reallocation | 15,218 17,016
4410 |Water [ 265
4415  |Energy Supplies 3,941
4423  |Upgrading 2,250 0
4425  |Repairs and Maintenance 1,532
4430  |Maint. Contracts 26,913
4435  |Maint. Contracts Unscheduled 9,650 346
Tree maintenance
4515  |Tree Surveys & Works 2,600
4580 |PPE 97
4585 | Drinking Water Tap 1,220 0
4590  |Consultation - Wash Common 0
|Overhead Expenditure E— B 52,710
4423  |Upgrading - City Rec Bench |
4585  |Drinking Water Tap 1,220
Green Flag - City Rec E— )
Ouhesd xpen S—
4045  |Salary Realiocation 18,258 19,302
4423  |Upgrading 5,800 0
4425 |Repairs and Maintenance 14,000 26,879 i
4430  |Maint. Contracts 23,240 21,230
4435 9,600 o}
i 70,898 67,411

7,144 125,000
14,101 30,000
12,892 26,000

0

2,000{

54,882

e e — > [
30,007

40,000 10,000

25,000

26,000

1,000

220,500/




86

345 |Victoris

5 Bt o e i
WL Cd S =y D

Grants & Donations Received

i [as=

10,000]

1120 0
1360 |Income - Tennis Courts 12,000
1380 |income - Bowling Club 927
1385 |Income - Kiosk/Cafe 1,600
1391 |Income - Mini Golf 0]
1500  |Other open spaces income 2,000
1990 |Miscellaneous Income 1,000
] ) Tn _o o 17,527
4537 |Upgrade VP Bandstand 0
4539  |Replace disability swing 0
4541  |Repairs to Victoria and Lions 0
4543  |Splashpark 0
4591 |Green Flag :
|Direct Expenditure 0]
4045  |Salary Reallocation 32,530
4325 PWLB Loan Interest 10,000
4355 |Toilet Hire - Vic Pk 700
4410 Water 4,350
4415  |Energy Supplies 4,000
4425  |Repairs and Maintenance I 13,450 16,672
4430  |Maint. Contracts 66,450
4435 Maint. Contracts Unscheduled 4,850
4437  |Wild Flower Meadow VP 4,000
4440  |Fire Extinguishers 200
4445  |Security 5(&
4465  |Tennis Courts Maintenance Fund 3,600
4475  |VP LTA Registration Fee 350
4480 |Music at the Bandstand 3,000
4485  |VP tennis court promotion I 1,500
4490 |VP Fun Day Il 2,500
4515  [Tree Surveys & Works [ 2,300
4525  |Fees I 35,000
4530 |Community Cafe 399,000
4535 Hoist I 12,000
4590 [Consultation - Café 1,000
Overhead Expenditure o 601,280
345 Net Income over Expenditure -583,753

4,297
450 950
2,142 4,000
5,500 5,000
3,250 5,000
21,669 0
47,308
150 0
10,057 0
0 500
3,988 2,500
850
14,195
26,597 60,151
0 0 15,000
735 8,800
6,604 9,000
1,949 4,500
11,860 22,000
36,454 75,000
1,460 6,000
0
500
500
3,600
0
3,000
0
2,500
2,000
0
22,138 0 269,661 60,339 300,000
0 0
0 0
113,896
-80,783




66

25

(=}

20,000

10,609

500

110

2,000

78,000

2,000

3,000

500

1,000

10,000

1,500

6,690

0

26,000

1,500

0

3,000

450

1395  |Wayleave Income 25 25
1500 |Other open spaces income — 240
1990 |Miscellaneous Income 4,000
it i 25 4,265
4771 |Hutton Close Upgrade l 0
[oirect Expenditure B . 0
4045  |Salary Reallocation 25,65 27,708
4400 |Rent Payable 180 82
4410 |water 100 29
4425  |Repairs and Maintenance 5,000 4,752
4430 |Maint. Contracts 72,954 71,372
4435  |Maint. Contracts Unscheduled 4,000 1,224
4515  |Tree Surveys & Works . 7,650 5,925
4750 |Greenham House Gdns 9450 0
4755  |Blossoms Field Tree Works 3,500 0
4760  |Litter Picking Equipment ____Sﬂ 92
4765  |Speen Moor Friends Group 500 199
4770  |Biodiversity Survey 2,000 0

4773 |Water courses —
Dver] e . 131,53 111,383
350 Net Income over Expenditure -131,507 -107,118
1990 |Miscellaneous income 2, 1,135
al | 2,000 1,135

—
4045 |Salary Reallocation 6,11 5,963
4425  |Repairs and Maintenance 8;114 0
4430 |Maint. Contracts - 21,8 21,170
4435  |Maint. Contracts Unscheduled | 0
4470  |Tree Maintenance - 5,000
4500 |Tree planting 2,297
4505 |Edible Crops _ 0
4510 |Additional Floral Displays NIB 1,599
4590 0
] 36,029

18,500

0 25

0 0

0 0

0 25
2,091 15,000
2,091 15,000
8,777 16,500
479 180

8 110

948 4,000
42,939 78,000
315 2,000
950 3,530

0 10,500

0 0

0 500

0 500

0 1,500
54,416 117,320
-56,507 -132,295
1,437 997
1,437 997
3,724 7,000
52 0
12,849 25,000
4] 0

850 4,680

0 2,000

0 450

561 750

0 Y]
18,036 35,880

0




00T

0 400
@ 400
| 0 5,661 0
|Direct Expenditure .0 D 5,661
4045  |Salary Reallocation 18,307 19,380 / 5,319 8,626
4710 |Newbury In Bloom 7,000 3,479| 3,136 4,500
Overhead Expenditure | 25307 22,859 71 8,455
360 Net Income over Expenditure } -22,359 -13,716
42 ash Common Allc . Tl | AAE| N (TSNl 179 ) e e o
1400  |Allotment Income 3,584
fomtneome | | 3,584 a0
4451  |Notice Boards - Wash Common ] of 1,850 0
[Direct Expenditure | 0 5 :
4045  [Salary Reallocation I 5,743 | 01} 2,801
4410  |Water 408 | i 1,500
4425  |Repairs and Maintenance | ( 1,101 3,000
4430  |Maint. Contracts 1,440 1,454 | 2,800
4435  |Maint. Contracts Unscheduled . 2,000 ol 2,000
4450  |Extra security measures 2,300 ol () | 1,000
4515 |Tree Surveys & Works - C 0f i 1,500
Overhead Expenditure ~r - 8,706
Allotment Income 20,599 |
IL-——” Ad ——-— - =_£- e ea——— . i ) 20,500 —u
Notice Boards - other allotmenmts | 0 50 5,852 ; 1}
|Direct Expenditure I 0 5,850 5,852 i
4045  |Salary Reallocation 31,656 18,100 19,500 00 | 16,000
4255  |Professional Fees Ik C 0 i} 0 0
4400 |Rent Payable = 850 ) 900/ 900
4410  |Water e 2,185 1,10 3,500 1,000 4,000
4425  |Repairs and Maintenance 12,293 5,400 4,500 4,000
4430  |Maint. Contracts j 6,995 G870 10,300 ! 10,500
4435 |Maint. Contracts Unscheduled 0| 1 0 3,000 000 4,000
4450  |Extra security measures 1,371 3,000 3,000 2,001 2,000
4515  (Tree Surveys & Works | 500| /B0 2,800 2,50 2,500
Overhead Expenditure s | 55,850 | 0| 47,500 :
421 Net Income over Expenditure -35,251 -32,852
6000 plus Transfer from EMR . ) 2,000 0 of




10T

10,185

15,000

0

2,000

1,500

24,519

500

1,000

500

500

24,403

1,000

3,500

4417  |Refurbishment - Wharf toilets 0
[Dretbxgenditue | | o 0
4045  |Salary Reallocation 6,424 7,616
4195  |Wharf Toilets Contract 11,845 11,480
4405 [Rates 7,3@} 6,776
4425  |Repairs and Maintenance | 3,650 285
e =S — = 12,605

|
4640  |Queens Platinum Jubilee ] 0
4641  |NTC 25th Anniversary 619

4642  |Coronation |
|Direct Expenditure - he oo ) 619
4045  |Salary Reallocation 28,08 30,961
4600 |CPA&L Committee Fund 500 0
4625 |Art Trail 1,@] 1,366
4637 |Local Democracy WG 600 515
4638 |Youth Voice Event 5,000 235
4639  |Art on the Park 500 0
Ovérhead Expenditure 35681 33,077

———
4045  |Salary Reallocation 30,469 32,761
4650  |[Mavyors Allowance i 1@ 326
4655  [Honorarium 4,000' 2,340
4660 |Mayor Making 2,500 810
4665 |Remembrance 4, 1,549
4670 |Regalia and Robes 3,000 2,739
4680 | Civic Hospitality & Events 1,291
4690 |Twin Towns 250
4700  |Civic Award Scheme 1,180
4705 |Watership Brass 650

43,896

2,675 5,000
2,675 5,000
1,596 3,000
6,050 12,450
0 0

251 1,000
7,937 16,450
1,499 1,499
1,238 2,000
2,737 3,499
15,958 25,000
0 0

725 1,000

43 600

0 0

500 500
17,226 31,100
13,032 23,500
526 1,000
1,650 4,000
1,847 2,000
602 3,000
353 2,000
1,049 1,500
-250 250

0 500

650 650
19,459 38,400

2,500

3,000

2,000

1,500

250

1,000

650




c0T

1120 [Grants & Donations Received ) 0 0 0 15,000
i 0 0 0
4045  |Salary Reallocation 32,142 35,430 23,671 43,500 35,980
4800 |P & H Committee Fund 396 0 1,000 1,000
4805 |Heritage Working Group 498 401 1,000 1,000
4810 |Neighbourhood Development Plan 7, 1,228 1,062 5,000 15,000
4815  |Signage 10, 0 0 0 0
4820 |Canal Corridor 10, 0 0 3,000 0
verhe; e [ 37,552 25,134 53,500
600 Net Income over Expenditure ~ -63,042 -37,552 -25,134 -53,500
Reserves, etc 705,500
Total Budget Income [, 1,411,345 1,407,836] 1,473,761 1,575,224 302,345 1,272,879 330,161 75,339 300,000
Expenditure T 1,306,014 867,831 2,212,425 2,280,724 1,272,879
Net Income over Expenditure 6667 105,331 540,004 -738,664- 1,575,224
1,180,623
7.8%




Q/A SHEET — QUESTIONS FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS

Did you know? You can report issues such as:

missed bin,

potholes,
streetlights,

noise.

abandoned vehicle,

graffiti & fly tipping,

Please follow this link and fill out a ‘report it’ form: https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/apply-pay-report/report-it

MEETING QUESTION OFFICER WRITTEN RESPONSE
Advised that the latency does improve with FTTP connections
= however it will not improve the wireless connection, this is
8 New technologies that would dependent on the quality of the router installed and thickness and
decrease the likelihood of latencies compositions of walls. It can also be affected by other electronic
(delays) in wireless connection. devices in the home such as putting the router next to a blue tooth
device which can cause interference on the Wi-Fi signal and slow it

down.

Any works on improving broadband Shasta Parveen The relevant broadband provider for this area has confirmed that
connectivity on Park Street and Service Lead for’ Park Street will be covered with the build plan for Windsor, most
19.09.2023 | Prescott Street as part of the Digital likely to start in the New Year. This build is however subject to

Adoption Strategy.

Internet access for a local business
near the B Road off Dedworth
Road.

Whether the Local Enterprise
Partnership could anything to
encourage service providers to
offer shorter-term contracts in

Infrastructure and
Digital Strategy

survey.

Currently under review with the provider and further information will
follow once investigations have taken place.

Advised that this is regulated by Home — Ofcom. It would be them
who would be able to encourage this, however this has been passed
to the Digital Infrastructure Group as information to be shared with
the provider stakeholders.

g wa)| epuaby



https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/apply-pay-report/report-it
https://www.ofcom.org.uk/home

regard contracts in rental properties
which do not have high costs.

Whether there was any work being
done to address the issue of
internet capacity and whether
signal blockers around Windsor
Castle played a role in this.

Which streets in Windsor would be
prioritised for the roll out of FTTP
and when this would happen.

What areas of Windsor would the
roll out of FTTP be implemented,
whether the Town Centre or wider

We cannot comment on the Castle and such blockers. Providers are
working in the area.

Due to commercial sensitivity, providers are unable to disclose
detail order of build plans; however, over the coming months and
into the New Year there should be improved connectivity.

Due to commercial sensitivity, providers are unable to disclose
detail order of build plans; however, over the coming months and
into the New Year there should be improved connectivity.

Windsor, as well as whether it Sign posting information: Fibre Community Partnerships can be an
- would include the rural areas of option for communities that are outside the providers build plans:
E Eton. e Fibre Community Partnership | Openreach
e Gigabit Vouchers (culture.gov.uk)
Naomi Markham,
18.07.2023 | Grass cutting contracts Waste Strategy TBC

Manager



https://www.openreach.com/fibre-broadband/fibre-community-partnership#:~:text=With%20our%20help%2C%20arranging%20a%20Fibre%20Community%20Partnership,formed%20and%20enter%20into%20a%20contract%20with%20Openreach.
https://gigabitvoucher.culture.gov.uk/

	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	DPIs (relating to the Member or their partner) include:

	3 Minutes
	4 Busy Buttons CORE Charity
	5 Parish and Town Councils - Powers and Responsibilities
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Powers and Duties of Parish Councils
	HoCLibrary-ParishandTownCouncils
	Summary
	1 Parish councils
	1.1 What are parish and town councils?
	1.2 Where do parish and town councils exist?
	1.3 Charter trustees
	1.4 Differences between parish councils and principal authorities
	1.5 Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland

	2 Finance and the precept
	2.1 Other sources of finance

	3 Parish council powers
	3.1 Parish meetings
	3.2 Parish polls
	3.3 Co-option: ordinary elections
	3.4 Co-option: by-elections
	3.5 Frequency of co-option

	4 Creating new parish councils
	4.1 Creation and abolition
	4.2 Community governance reviews
	4.3 Petitions
	4.4 Changes to system for establishing parish councils
	4.5 Creation of new wards
	4.6 Small parishes
	4.7 Alternatives to parish councils
	4.8 Parishes in London

	5 Complaints regarding parish councils
	5.1 Audit
	5.2 Standards

	6 Parish and town councils: recent policy changes
	6.1 Parish council funding of churches
	6.2 Public participation
	6.3 Online meetings
	6.4 The Local Government Ombudsman and parish and town councils
	6.5 Council tax support and precept levels
	6.6 Parish councils and business rates
	6.7 Parish councils and neighbourhood planning
	6.8 Cheques
	6.9 Electronic agendas


	Newbury Town Council budget-2023-24-complete
	App 7- Budget Cover
	Decision Required:
	To note that the Policy & Resources Committee resolved on 16 January to adopt a budget for 2023/24, and recommends that the Council sets an overall budget expenditure of £2,280,724
	To resolve to adopt the budget for Financial Year 2023/2024 and raise a  precept of £1,575,224 for the year
	To resolve that a leaflet explaining to the public how the precept is to be used during 2023/24 is produced, with that leaflet to be distributed to each household in Newbury and published on the Council’s website.

	App 7.1 - Budget and Strategy
	Slide 1:    Strategy 2019-2024 – Year 4 update and  Budget 2023/24   Full Council, 30th January 2023, v1     Making Newbury a town we can all be proud of
	Slide 2: Our Mission – What drives us?
	Slide 3: 2022-23: Continued delivery in most areas
	Slide 4: 2023-24: Key strategic projects
	Slide 5: Our Goals – Where are we heading?
	Slide 6: Summary of Key Strategic Actions 2019-2024
	Slide 7: Inflation – CPI last 5 years and forecast next 2 years
	Slide 8: Budget – Topline vs CPI
	Slide 9: Budget 2023-24 vs 2022-23 – Illustrative Summary
	Slide 10: Supporting our key strategy goals
	Slide 11: Our Mission

	App 7.2- Budget table
	App XX- Draft Budget 2023-24- P & R 16.01.23



	8 Resident Questions and Item Suggestions for Next Forum



